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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Directors of
Wilson Sons Limited
Hamilton, Bermuda

We have audited the accompanying consolidated diabstatements of Wilson Sons Limited
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which compride consolidated balance sheets as at
December 31, 2010, and the consolidated statenfenbraprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidatadratnt of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policiesd asther explanatory information, all
expressed in United States Dollars, the presentatiorency of the Group.

Management's Responsibility for the ConsolidatewRcial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation ad gresentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Internatiodfinancial Reporting Standards, and for
such internal control as management determinesecgessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are fres fneaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesnsolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordancé Witernational Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethiegdiirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether tisoldated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaurdia evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statesiefhe procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of rikkes of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due remudf or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal corgl@vant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statdmanorder to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for theppse of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Aaudit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used andetlionableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overagmtation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaiseuifficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaagive a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group as at December 31, 2010, afntheir financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance witkerirational Financial Reporting Standards,
expressed in United States dollars.

Our audit also comprehended the convenience titzotslaf the presentation currency amounts
(United States Dollar) into Brazilian Real amouatsd, in our opinion, such convenience
translation has been made in conformity with theidatated in Note 2. The translation of the
consolidated financial statements amounts into iBaazReais has been made solely for the
convenience of readers in Brazil and does not putporepresent amounts in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

N, /} #7/ 4 /, /) 4
Pz, '\/\fo{ (Quctee NQumi .
DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU
Auditores Independentes

Rio de Janeiro, Brazil
March 24, 2011



WILSON SONS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

(Amounts expressed in thousands, unless otherwise /- Brazilian Real amounts
are the result of a Convenience Translation)

Convenience translation (*)

2010 2009 2010 2009
Notes US$ US$ R$ R$

REVENUE 4 575,551 477,888 958,982 832,098
Raw materials and consumables used (67,222Y49,570) (112,005) (86,311)
Employee benefits expense 5 (198,736)149,086) (331,134) (259,588)
Depreciation and amortization expenses (42,921) (32,065) (71,515) (55,832)
Other operating expenses 6 (188,276) (151,337) (313,705) (263,508)
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 90 470 150 818
Investment income 7 13,940 34,343 23,227 59,798
Finance costs 7 (11,814) (9,555) (19,684) (16,637)
Capital gain in joint venture transaction 23 2@,40 - 34,002 -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 101,019 121,088 168,318 210,838
Income tax expense 8 (30,512 (31,109 (50,843 (54,158)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 70,505 89,984 117,475 156,680
Profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company 69,996 88,531 116,627 154,149

Non-controlling interests 509 1,453 848 2,531

70,505 89,984 117,475 156.680

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Exchange differences on translating 4,607 15,538 7,676 27,053
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 75,112 105,522 125,151 183,733
Total comprehensive income for the year attribugadbl
Owners of the Company 74,855 102,823 124,723 179,034
Non-controlling interests 257 2,699 428 4,699

75,112 105,522 125,151 183,733

Earnings per share from continuing operations
Basic and diluted (cents per share) 21 98.39c¢ 124.44c 163.93c 216.67c¢

(*) Exchange rates for convenience translation
12/31/10 — R$1.6662/ US$1.00
12/31/09 — R$1.7412/ US$1.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.




WILSON SONS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2010

(Amounts expressed in thousands, unless otherwise R Brazilian Real amounts

are the result of a Convenience Translation)

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Trade and other receivables
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Short term investments
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital

Capital reserves

Profit reserve

Contributed surplus
Retained earnings
Translation reserve

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non controlling interests
Total equity

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank loans

Deferred tax liabilities

Provisions for contingencies
Obligations under finance leases
Total non-current liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Current tax liabilities

Obligations under finance leases
Bank overdrafts and loans

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(*) Exchange rates for convenience translation

12/31/10 — R$1.6662/ US$1.00
12/31/09 — R$1.7412/ US$1.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part otdmsolidated financial statements.

10
11

16
13

12
13
14
14

21

15
16
17
18

19

18
15

Convenience translation (*)

2010 2009 2010 2009
US$ Uss$ R$ R$
15,612 15,612 26,013 27.184
16,841 2,239 28,060 93,89
560,832 438,878 4,438 764,174
28,923 25,499 48,192 44,398
6,400 - 10,665 -
6,552 10,521 10,918 18,319
635,160 492,749 1,058,306 857,974
20,147 20,687 33,569 36.021
128,561 105,499 2064, 183,695
36,729 11,116 61,198 589,3
118,172 178,136 196,898 310,170
303,609 315,438 505,871 549,241
938,769 808,187 1,564,177 1,407,215
9,905 9,905 16,504 17,247
91,484 146,334 152,431 254,797
1,981 1,981 3,301 3,449
27,449 - 45,737 -
313,299 243,303 522,017 423,640
20,924 16,065 34,864 27,972
465,042 417,588 774,854 727,105
- 5,891 - 10,257
465,042 423,479 774,854 737,362
288,596 237,271 480,859 413.136
15,073 16,140 25,115 192
12,289 9,831 20,476 17,118
6,305 8.653 10,505 15,067
322,263 271,895 536,955 473,423
117,698 89,927 196,108 156,581
3,354 838 5,588 1,460
4,847 3,902 768,0 6,793
25,565 18,146 42,596 31,596
151,464 112,813 252,368 196,430
473,727 384,708 789,323 669,853
938,769 808,187 1,564,177 1,407,215




WILSON SONS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
(Amounts expressed in thousands, unless otherwise - Brazilian Real amounts are the result obav€nience Translation)

Capital reserves Attributable
Additional to owners Non-
Share Share paid Profit  Contributed Retained dagion of the controlling
Notes capital premium Others in capital reserve surplus earnings reserve parent interests Total
Uss$ Uss$ uss uss Uss$ uss uss Uss$ uss uss Uss$
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2009 9,905 117,951 28,383 - 1,981 - 170,779 1,773 330,772 1,411 332,183
Profit for the year - - - - - - 88,531 - 88,531 1,453 89,984
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - - 14,292 14,292 1,246 15,538
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 88,531 14,292 102,823 2,699 105,522
Capital increase - - - - - - - 1,781 1,78
Dividends - - - - - - (16,007 - (16,007 - (16,007
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2009 21 9,905 117,951 28,383 - 1,981 - 243,303 16,065 417,588 5,891 423,479
Profit for the year - - - - - 69,996 - 69,996 509 70,505
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - - 4,859 4,859 (252 4,607
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 69,996 4,859 74,855 257 75,112
Purchase of non-controlling interests 22 - - - 85%0) - - - (4,850) (4,156) (9,006)
Transfer to retained earnings - (50,000) - - ,080 - - - - -
Dividends - - - - - (22,55) - - (22,551 (1,992 (24,543
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2010 21 9,905 _67,951 28,383 (4,850 1,981 27,449 313,299 20,924 465,042 - 465,042
(continue)



WILSON SONS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

(Amounts expressed in thousands, unless otherwise R Brazilian Real amounts are the result obav@nience Translation)

BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2009

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Capital increase

Dividends

Translation adjustment to Real

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2009

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Purchase of non-controlling interest
Transfer to retained earnings

Dividends

Translation adjustment to Real

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2010

(*) Exchange rates for convenience
translation

12/31/10 — R$1.6662/ US$1.00
12/31/09 — R$1.7412/ US$1.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part odmsolidated financial statements.

Convenience translation (*)

Capital reserves

Additional to owners Non-
Share Share paid Profit  Contributed Retained dlation of the controlling
Notes capital premium Others in capital reserve surplus earnings reserve parent interests Total
RS RS RS R$ RS R$ RS RS RS R$ RS
23,148 275,652 66,331 - 4,630 - 399,111 4,144 773,016 3,298 776,314
- - - - - - 154,149 - 154,149 2,531 156,680
- - - - - - - 24,885 24,885 2,168 27,053
- - - - - - 154,149 24,885 179,034 4,699 183,733
- - - - - - - - 3,101 3,101
- - - - - - (27,871) - (27,871) - (27,871)
(5,901 (70,275 (16,911) - (1,18) - (101,749 (1,053 (197,073 (84) (197,915
21 17,247 205,377 49,420 - 3,499 - 423,640 27,972 727,105 10,257 737,362
- - - - - - 116,627 - 116,627 848 117,475
- - - - - - - 8,096 8,096 (420 7,676
- - - - - - 116,627 8,096 124,723 428 125,151
22 - - - ,088) - - - - (8,080) (6,925) (15,005)
- (83,311) - - 83,311 - - - - -
- - - - - (37,574) - (378 (3,320)  (40,894)
(743 (8,849 (2,129 - (148 - (18,250 (1,209 (31,320 (449 (31,760
21 16,504 113,220 47,291 8,080 3,301 45,737 522,017 34,864 774,854 - 774,854




WILSON SONS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

(Amounts expressed in thousands, unless othenwisel r- Brazilian real amounts are the result
of a Convenience Translation)

Convenience Translation (*)

2010 2009 2010 2009
Notes uss uss R$ R$

NET CASH GENERATED BY OPERATING

ACTIVITIES 27 97,013 69,908 161,643 121,724
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 7 8,467 6,874 14,107 11,969
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipme 959 751 1,598 1,308
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (18),97 (139,743) (269,876) (243,320)
Other intangible assets (14,546) - (24,237) -
Investment - short term investment (25,613) (1@)13 (42,676) (19,380)
Net cash from the joint venture transaction 048, - 8,398 -
Net cash used in investing activities (187664 (143,248 (312,686 (249,423
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (24,543) (16,007) (40,894) (27,871)
Repayments of borrowings (18,953) (16,848) (31,579 (29,336)
Repayments of obligation under finance leases 63,9 (3,844) (6,613) (6,693)
New bank loans raised 77,650 83,894 129,380 146,076
Bank overdrafts raised 6,391 227 10,649 396
Acquisition of minority interest in subsidiary (9,006 - (15,005 -
Net cash generated by financing activities 2,57 47,422 45,938 82,572
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (63,081) (25,918) (105,105) (45,127)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 178,136 180,022 310,170 420,711
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 3,1 24,032 5,193 41,844
Translation adjustment to Real - - (13,360 (107,258
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

END OF THE YEAR 118,172 178,136 196,898 310,170

(*) Exchange rates for convenience translation
12/31/10 — R$1.6662/ US$1.00
12/31/09 — R$1.7412/ US$1.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftinsolidated financial statements.




WILSON SONS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Wilson Sons Limited (the “Group” or “Company”) islianited company incorporated in
Bermuda under the Companies Act 1981. The addifetbee aegistered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM11, Bermudae Troup is one of the largest
providers of integrated port and maritime logistaosd supply chain solutions in Brazil.
Throughout over 173 years in the Brazilian markeg have developed an extensive
Brazilian network and provide a variety of servicelated to international trade, particularly
in the port and maritime sectors. Our principaliatoés are divided into the following
segments: operation of port terminals, towage eesyi logistics, shipping assistance,
support to offshore oil and natural gas platformd shipyard.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNING
JUDGEMENTS

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have beegmaped in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are presemedS Dollars because that is the
currency of the primary economic environment incethithe Group operates. Entities with a
functional currency other than US Dollars are ideld in accordance with the accounting
policies described below.

The consolidated financial statements have beguaped on the historical cost basis except
for financial instruments and share-based paymiidity that are measured at fair values,

as explained in the accounting policies below. ¢tisal cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange feets

Convenience translation

The consolidated financial statements were origingrepared in US Dollars. A
convenience translation to the Real, the BraziGarrency, was carried out solely for the
convenience of readers in Brazil and does not pttporepresent amounts in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standardsg ghould not be construed as implying
that the amounts in US Dollars represent, or ctwalde been or could be converted into,
Reais, at such rates or at any other rate. Theaagehrates used for the purposes of this
convenience translation were the PTAX exchanges naténg as at the closing dates of the
consolidated financial statements, as publishethéyBrazilian Central Bank. On December
31, 2010 and 2009 the applicable exchange ratese ViR$1.6662 and R$1.7412,
respectively. The difference between the applicalalehanges rates, on each of the closing

8



Wilson Sons Limited

dates, generates impacts of translation on thenbeyg balances of the consolidated
financial statements in Brazilian Real and on thanges therein through the subsequent
period. The effect of this difference was disclosadthe Brazilian Real Consolidated

Statement of Changes in Equity and respective rasé3ranslation adjustment to Real".

The principal accounting policies are set out below

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporag¢efinancial statements of the Company
and entities controlled by the Company. Controaéhieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating poficid an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposediwing the year are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income frareffective date of acquisition and
up to the effective date of disposal, as approgriat

When necessary, adjustments are made to the falasteiements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies into line with those ussdother members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income axgenses are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are idfead separately from the Group’s equity

therein. The interests of non-controlling sharebddmay be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ propamate share of the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice @&asurement basis is made on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent toumtiipn, the carrying amount of non-

controlling interests is the amount of those indegeat initial recognition plus the non-

controlling interests’ share of subsequent chamgesjuity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to non-controlling interests even ifsthiesults in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

The consolidated financial statements include theoants of the direct and indirect
subsidiaries which are listed in Note 22.

Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement wheithle Group and other parties undertake
an economic activity that is subject to joint cohtwhich is when the strategic financial and
operating policy decisions relating to the actesti of the joint venture require the

unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

When a Group entity undertakes its activities undet venture arrangements directly, the
Group’s share of jointly controlled assets and &apilities incurred jointly with other
venturers are recognized in the financial statementthe relevant entity and classified
according to their nature. Liabilities and expensesirred directly in respect of interests in
jointly controlled assets are accounted for on @ruwal basis. Income from the sale or use
of the Group’s share of the output of jointly catied assets, and its share of joint venture

9



Wilson Sons Limited

expenses, are recognized when it is probable lieattonomic benefits associated with the
transactions will flow to/from the Group and themount can be measured reliably.

Joint venture arrangements that involve the estailslent of a separate entity in which each
venturer has an interest are referred to as joitlytrolled entities. The Group reports its
interests in jointly controlled entities using pooflonate consolidation. The Group’s share
of the assets, liabilities, income and expensgsintly controlled entities are combined with
the equivalent items in the consolidated finanstatements on a line-by-line basis.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly cofied entity, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the jointly controlleahtiey are recognised in the Group'
consolidated financial statements only to the ext#ninterests in the jointly controlled
entity that are not related to the Group.

Foreign currency

The functional currency for each Group entity ised@mined as the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates. Traneast in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currenciegk aecognized at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Atehd of each reporting period, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign owies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measiur terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

On consolidation, the income statement items oitiestwith a functional currency other
than US Dollars are translated into US Dollars, @mup’s presentational currency, at
average rates of exchange. Balance sheet itentsaaistated into US Dollars at year end
exchange rates. Exchange differences arising osotidation of entities with functional
currencies other than US Dollars are classifiedther comprehensive income.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement bergéihs are charged as an expense as they
fall due. Payments made to state-managed retirelmemefit schemes are dealt with as
payments to defined contribution plans where theu@'s obligations under the plans are
equivalent to those arising in a defined contrilmutietirement benefit plan.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the teantly payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable tpfofithe year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the consolidated income stat® because it excludes or includes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductiblether years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. Theu@soliability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substhnénacted by the end of the reporting
period.

10



Wilson Sons Limited

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payablecoverable on temporary differences (i.e.
differences between the carrying amounts of assetdiabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax basis used in the coriputaf taxable profit). Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxaltémporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognized for all deductible temppomifferences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available iaga which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred taxtass®l liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or frohetinitial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liadslitn a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxabdenporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, arcesis in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the terappdifference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foesgle future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associateth wuch investments and interests are
only recognized to the extent that it is probabilat there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the tenapprdifferences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is wedeat the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer @iotd that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to éeovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measuredeatax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or theset is realized, based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively eshbgtéhe end of the reporting period.

The Company will normally have a legally enforceabght to set off a deferred tax asset
against a deferred tax liability when these itemesia the same entity and relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority andakation authority permits the company
to make or receive a single net payment. In thesaliatated financial statements, a deferred
tax asset of one entity in the Group cannot besbHigainst a deferred tax liability of another
entity in the Group as there is no legally enfobteaight to offset tax assets and liabilities
between Group companies.

Current and deferred tax are recognized as an sgpanincome in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items charged or credited tyrég equity, in which case the tax is also
taken directly to equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cest decumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the costaluation of assets, other than land and

assets under construction, over their estimatefiiuisees, using the straight-line method as
follows.

11
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Freehold Buildings: 25 years
Improvements in Rented Buildings: *)

Floating Cratft: 20 years
Vehicles: 5 years

Plant and Equipment: 5 to 20 years

(*) lowest than period of the rental or useful life

Assets in the course of construction are carriezbst, less any recognized impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees for qualifying &ssBepreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commenceshehassets are ready for intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciatrdimeir expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets, except when there is nonedds certainty that the lessee will

obtain ownership by the end of the lease term irchvthe asset shall be fully depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term and its usdgéul |

Docking costs are capitalized and depreciated olerperiod in which the economic
benefits are received.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or reteehof an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference betwiersales proceeds, if applicable, and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognizedanricome statement.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acgios, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necegdaké a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are adddbeaost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their irddndgse or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investofespecific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted frdra borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in prafitloss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiatya jointly controlled entity represents
the excess of the cost of acquisition over the @sinterest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingenbiidies of the subsidiary or jointly controlled
entity recognized at the date of acquisition. Goddw initially recognized as an asset at
cost and is subsequently aseired at cost less any accumulated impairmergdoss

On disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlttity, the attributable amount of goodwill
is induded in the determination of the profit or lossdisposal.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairmennhwore frequently if there are indications
that goodwill might be impaired. The recoverableoants are determined from value in use
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Wilson Sons Limited

calculations. The key assumptions for the valuase calculations are those regarding the
discount rate, growth rates and expected changeslimg prices and costs during the

period. Management estimates discount rates usigag rates that reflect current market

assessments of the time value of money and the sig&cific to the cash generating unit.

Growth rates are based on management’s forecastBistorical trends. Changes in selling

prices and direct costs are based on past practimbexpectations of future changes in the
market.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are cartiedst less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is gaeed on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated udé@ibnd amortization method are reviewed
at the end of each annual reporting period, withdffect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets othan goodwill

Assets that are subject to amortization or deptieciaare reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdtbat their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives anthngible assets not yet available for use
are tested for impairment at least annually, andnekier there is an indication that the asset
may be impaired.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amountwdyich the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverablerinthe higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of aggggnpairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately iditfitie cash inflows.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost andre&tizable value. Costs comprise direct

materials and, where applicable, directly attriblgaabor costs and those overheads that
have been incurred in bringing the inventoriesheirt present location and condition. Net

realizable value represents the estimated sellireg ffor inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs to be incurred in marketsgdling and distribution.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognizetthénGroup’s balance sheet when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions @iktrument.

1. Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified into the followspgcified categories: financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), held noaturity investments, available for
sale (AFS) financial assets and loans and recedgalihe classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets andetermined at the time of initial
recognition.
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Investments are recognized and derecognized oe tfai@ when the purchase or sale of
a financial asset is under a contract whose teegsire delivery of the financial asset

within the timeframe established by the market eoned, and are initially measured at
fair value, plus transaction costs, except for ¢hbisancial assets classified as at fair
value trough profit or loss (FVTPL), which are ialty measured at fair value.

All recognized financial assets are subsequentlpsmed in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value.

Income is recognized on an effective interest bfasislebt instruments other than those
financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

The effective interest method is a method of caliiod the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income oves televant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discountsnesed future cash receipts (including
all fees on points paid or received that form daegral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discodimtsygh the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter petimthe net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

The financial assets of the Company have beenifidksas loan and receivables.

Loans and receivables

The following instruments have been classified @an$ and receivables and are
measured at amortised cost using the effectivedstemethod, less any impairment
loss. Interest income is recognized by applying dffective interest rate, except for
short-term receivables when the recognition ofregéewould be immaterial.

* Cash and Cash Equivalents / Short Term Investmé@#sh and cash equivalents
comprise cash in hand and other short-term higglyd before 90 days and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changesatue; and Short Term Investments
comprise cash in hand and other short-term invegsngith more than 90 days of
maturity but less than 365 days.

« Trade Receivables: Trade receivables and other mtsioeiceivable are stated at the
present value of the amounts due, reduced by thairment loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets that are measured at amortizeid atesassessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting periodafamal assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence thata agsult of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the fiméad asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the investment have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. Significant financial difficulty of the issuer obanterparty; or

. Default or delinquency in interest or principal pants; or
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. It becoming probable that the borrower will entemkruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

. The disappearance of an active market for thatnf@iz asset of financial
difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, sucltrade receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are, iditaoth, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairmfamta portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collectiagrpents, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the ayereredit period of 60 days, as well
as observable changes in national or local econ@oialitions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, ahwunt of the impairment loss
recognized is the difference between the assettying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, reflecting the ictpaf collateral and guarantees,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effecinterest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is redulby the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of wadkeceivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowaoceuant.

When a trade receivable is considered uncollegtililas written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amopirggiously written off are
credited against the allowance account. Changeshen carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only whercontractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfées financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the assantiher entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the riskd eewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group re@agnits retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may havepay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownegysifia transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognize the financial asset @so recognizes a collateralized
borrowing for the proceeds received.

2. Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either fical liabilities “as FVTPL” or “other
financial liabilities”.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPLewhthe financial liability is either held
for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

Other financial liabilities are initially measuratfair value, net of transaction cost.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently meaduat amortization cost, using the
effective interest method, with interest expensegeized on an effective yield basis.
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The effective interest method is a method of calttad) the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense ovée trelevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discountismesed future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability, or (wheeppropriate) a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

There are no financial liabilities classified at/FRL.

Other financial liabilities

* Bank overdrafts and loans: Interest-bearing baakdp overdrafts and obligations
under finance leases are recorded at the proceedwed, net of direct issue costs.
Finance charges, including premiums payable oressnht or redemption and
direct issue costs, are accounted for on the alschasis to the income statement
using the effective interest method and are addethé carrying amount of the
instrument to the extent that they are not settidte period in which they arise.

* Trade Payables: Trade payables and other amoupéblpa are measured at fair
value, net of transaction cost.

Derecoaqnition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities whemd only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expir

Derivatives

Derivatives: The Group may use derivative finanératruments to reduce exposure to
foreign exchange movements. Derivatives are medsatr@ach balance sheet date at fair
value. The Group does not have “hedge accounting’the gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value are included in the inconagestent for the period within investment
revenue or finance costs. The Group does not hayweerivatives for the periods presented.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instrumemtther host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when their risks and chaifatitsr are not closely related to those of
host contracts and the host contracts are notecaat fair value, with gains or losses
reported in the income statement. The Group doehanwe embedded derivatives for the
periods presented.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has &mprebligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that theu@ will be required to settle that obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amduihé @bligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the bdsha&® of the expenditure required to

settle the present obligation at the end of thentem period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
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When some or all of the economic benefits requicesettle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, raceivable is recognized as an asset if it is &llyucertain
that reimbursement will be received and the amainthe receivable can be measured
reliably.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract caedtenated reliably, revenue and costs
are recognized by reference to the stage of complef the contract activity at the end of
the reporting period, measured based on the priopoof contract costs incurred for work
performed to date relative to the estimated tadaltract costs, except where this would not
be representative of the stage of completion. Wana in contract work, claims and
incentive payments are included to the extenttth@Bmount can be measured reliably, have
been agreed with the customer and consequentbnsdered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cabaatstimated reliably, contract revenue
is recognized to the extent of contract costs irezithat it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognized as expenses in tioel pe which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs @iteed total contract revenue, the expected
loss is recognized as an expense immediately.

Share-based payments

In accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Paymentah settled share-based payments, a
liability is recognized for the goods or servicesj@red, measured initially at the fair value
of the liability.

At the end of each reporting period until the lipis settled, and at the date of settlement,
the fair value of the liability is remeasured, wahy changes in fair value recognized in
profit or loss for the year.

Fair value is measured by use of a binomial motle¢ fair value calculated by the model
has been adjusted, based on management’'s besttestifor the effects of behavioural
considerations.

Revenue

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideratceived or receivable for goods and

services provided in the normal course of busimetsof trade discounts and other sales
related taxes. If the Group is acting solely aagent, amounts billed to customers are offset
against relevant costs.

Sales of services are recognized when the workracted has been performed in
accordance with contracted terms.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognizaedeberence to the stage of completion

of the contract, in accordance with the Group’soaoting policy on construction contracts
aforementioned.
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Interest income is recognized when it is probabéa the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measuiablyelinterest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstagdand at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discewgdtimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that assett carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognized whies shareholders rights to receive
payment have been established.

Operating profit

Operating profit is stated before investment incofimance costs and income tax.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases wheneveertins of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lesgdl other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee:

Assets held under finance leases are recognizedsass of the Group at their fair value at
the inception of the lease or, if lower, at theseré value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is ina@ddin the balance sheet as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between financensgpeand reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate ofrasteon the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognized immedjain profit or loss, unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in whicase they are capitalised.

Operating leases payments are recognized as amsxj& a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources dinkegtion Uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accountiogjces, which are described above,
management has made the following judgments, etsr@nd assumptions that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognizethe financial statements as mentioned
below.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are redem an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the penodhich the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the periodthe revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

1. Provision for legal contingencies

In the normal course of business in Brazil, theuprés exposed to local legal cases.
Provisions for legal cases are made when the Gsaupnagement, together with their
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legal advisors, considers the probable outcome fmancial settlement against the
Group. Provisions are measured at the Managemieessestimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation based upon leglzice received. For labor claims the
provision is based on prior experience and managendest knowledge of the

relevant facts and circumstances.

2. Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requirgsestimation of the value in use of
the cash-generating units to which goodwill hasnba#ocated. The value in use
calculation requires the entity’'s management torege the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a daitdiscount rate in order to calculate
present value.

The carrying amount of goodwill at the end of tBparting period was US$15.6 million
(R$26.0 million) (2009: US$15.6 million (R$27.2 twh)). Details of the impairment

loss calculation are provided in note 9. Therenig impairment loss recognized for the
periods presented.

3. Fair value of derivatives and other financial ingtents

As described in Note 25, the Company may use derescontracts to manage foreign
currency risk. For derivative financial instrumenéssumptions are made based on
quoted market rates adjusted for specific featafethe instruments. Other financial

instruments are valued using a discounted cash #oalysis based on assumptions
supported, where possible, by observable markeegror rates. The Group does not
have any derivatives for the periods presented.

4. Cash settled share-based payment schemes

The fair value of cash settled share-based paymsndetermined using a binomial
model. The assumptions used in determining this Walue include the life of the
options, share price volatility, dividend yield andk free rate. Expected volatility is
determined by calculating the volatility of the @pds share price over a historical
period. The expected life used in the model has laefusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of behavioural aersitions. Expected dividend yield are
based on the Groups dividend policy. In determiniregrisk free rate the Group utilizes
the yield on a zero coupon government bond in thieeacy in which the exercise price
is expressed. Forfeiture rates are applied andridat distributions to fair valuations in
computing the share based payment charge. The Gismgoforfeiture rates in line with
management’s best estimate of the percentage atlawéhich will be forfeited, based
on the proportion of award holders expected toddghae Group.

Any changes in these assumptions will impact theyoey amount of cash settled
share-based payments liabilities.

5. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the costaluation of assets, other than land
and assets under construction, over their estimasefll lives, using the straight-line
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method. Estimated useful lives are determined basedprior experience and
management’s best knowledge, and are reviewed Bypnua

Adoption of new and revised International Finan&aborting Standards (IFRS)

1. Standards and Interpretations affecting amountsrte@ in the current period and/or
prior periods

The following new and revised IFRSs have been adph the current period and have
affected the amounts reported in these financatkestents. Details of other new and
revised IFRSs applied in these financial statem#rashave had no material effect on
the financial statements are set below.

New and revised Standards and Interpretationsffextt the financial statements

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Btatgs (as part of Improvements to
IFRSs issued in 2010)

The amendments to IAS 1 clarify that an entity nchypose to present the required
analysis of items of other comprehensive incomieeeiin the statement of changes in
equity or in the notes to the financial statemerithe Group has applied the
amendments in advance of their effective date (anperiods beginning on or after 1
January 2011). The amendments have been applredpettively.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Btatgs (as part of Improvements to
IFRSs issued in 2009)

The amendments to IAS 1 clarify that the poterd&dtlement of a liability by the issue
of equity is not relevant to its classificationa@srent or noncurrent.

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disgles (as part of Improvements to
IFRSs issued in 2010)

The amendments to IFRS 7 clarify the required le¥elisclosures about credit risk and
collateral held and provide relief from disclosurpeeviously required regarding
renegotiated loans.

IAS 27 (revised in 2008) Consolidated and Sepdfatancial Statements

The revised Standard affects accounting policigganding changes in ownership
interests in subsidiaries that do not result irs lofscontrol. In prior years, in the absence
of specific requirements in IFRSs, increases ierggts in existing subsidiaries were
treated in the same manner as the acquisitionlsidiaries, with goodwill or a bargain
purchase gain being recognised, when appropriatejdcreases in interests in existing
subsidiaries that did not involve a loss of contrdle difference between the
consideration received and the adjustment to tha-cootrolling interests was
recognised in profit or loss. Under IAS 27(2008),saich increases or decreases are
dealt with in equity, with no impact on goodwill profit or loss.
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When control of a subsidiary is lost as a resultaotransaction, event or other

circumstance, the revised Standard requires tacdgnese all assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests at their carrying amount aodrecognise the fair value of the

consideration received. Any retained interest eafdrmer subsidiary is recognised at its
fair value at the date control is lost. The resgltdifference is recognised as a gain or
loss in profit or loss.

These changes in accounting policies have beenedpptospectively from 1 January
2010 in accordance with the relevant transitiomal/gions.

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment — Grogh-sediled Share-based
Payment Transactions

The amendments clarify the scope of IFRS 2, as agethe accounting for group cash-
settled share-based payment transactions in tharatep (or individual) financial
statements of an entity receiving the goods orisesvwhen another group entity or
shareholder has the obligation to settle the award.

New and revised Standards and Interpretations adopith no effect on the financial
statements

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Inteéomal Financial Reporting
Standards — Additional Exemptions for First-timeopters

The amendments provide two exemptions when adog#iRfSs for the first time
relating to oil and gas assets, and the determimads to whether an arrangement
contains a lease.

IFRS 3 (revised in 2008) Business Combinations

IFRS 3(2008) has been applied in the current yearspectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is orafber 1 January 2010 in accordance
with the relevant transitional provisions. Its atlop has affected the accounting for
business combinations in the current year.

The impact of the application of IFRS 3(2008) id@bws:

* IFRS 3(2008) allows a choice on a transactiorirbgsaction basis for the
measurement of non-controlling interests at the datacquisition (previously
referred to as ‘minority’ interests) either at faaue or at the non-controlling
interests’ share of recognised identifiable nettassf the acquire.

« IFRS 3(2008) changes the recognition and gjuesg accounting requirements
for contingent consideration. Previously, contingeoonsideration was
recognised at the acquisition date only if paymeit the contingent
consideration was probable and it could be meastgieably; any subsequent
adjustments to the contingent consideration wenayd made against the cost
of the acquisition. Under the revised Standard,tingent consideration is
measured at fair value at the acquisition datesegient adjustments to the
consideration are recognised against the costeadi¢tquisition only to the extent
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that they arise from new information obtained wittie measurement period (a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)wltbe fair value at the
date of acquisition. All other subsequent adjustis:iém contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recoghisgrofit or loss.

 |IFRS 3(2008) requires the recognition of a settl@mgain or loss when the
business combination in effect settles a pre-exgstelationship between the Group
and the acquiree.

* |IFRS 3(2008) requires acquisition-related costise@ccounted for separately from
the business combination, generally leading todhmssts being recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred, whereasipusly they were accounted for as
part of the cost of the acquisition.

As part of Improvements to IFRSs issued in 201®RSF3 (2008) was amended to
clarify that the measurement choice regarding ramtrolling interests at the date of
acquisition (see above) is only available in respéaon-controlling interests that are
present ownership interests and that entitle thelders to a proportionate share of the
entity's net assets in the event of liquidatiorl.ctther types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition-date fair valudess another measurement basis is
required by other Standards.

In addition, as part of Improvements to IFRSs idsue 2010, IFRS 3(2008) was
amended to give more guidance regarding the accmumbr share-based payment
awards held by the acquirer's employees. Spedyicthe amendments specify that
share-based payment transactions of the acquirgte atle not replaced should be
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based dhdyat the acquisition date
(‘market-based measure’).

Amendments to IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held fler @&l Discontinued Operations
(as part of Improvements to IFRSs issued in 2009)

The amendments to IFRS 5 clarify that the disclesaguirements in IFRSs other than
IFRS 5 do not apply to non-current assets (or digpgroups) classified as held for sale
or discontinued operations unless those IFRSs meduispecific disclosures in respect
of non-current assets (or disposal groups) claskifis held for sale or discontinued
operations, or (ii) disclosures about measureménassets and liabilities within a
disposal group that are not within the scope ofnl@asurement requirement of IFRS 5
and the disclosures are not already provided irctimsolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held fier &al Discontinued Operations
(as part of Improvements to IFRSs issued in 2008)

The amendments clarify that all the assets andlitieab of a subsidiary should be
classified as held for sale when the Group is cabechito a sale plan involving loss of
control of that subsidiary, regardless of whetler Group will retain a non-controlling
interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Re¢mgnand Measurement — Eligible
Hedged Items
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The amendments provide clarification on two aspettsedge accounting: identifying
inflation as a hedged risk or portion, and hedgistty options.

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (asopdmprovements to IFRSs
issued in 2009)

The amendments to IAS 7 specify that only expeneéihat result in a recognised
asset in the statement of financial position caelassified as investing activities in the
statement of cash flows.

IAS 28 (revised in 2008) Investments in Associates

The principle adopted under IAS 27(2008) (see apdhat a loss of control is
recognised as a disposal and re-acquisition of ratgined interest at fair value is
extended by consequential amendments to IAS 28refdre, when significant
influence over an associate is lost, the investeasures any investment retained in the
former associate at fair value, with any conseqgakgain or loss recognised in profit or
loss.

As part of Improvements to IFRSs issued in 2015 28(2008) has been amended to
clarify that the amendments to IAS 28 regardinggeztions where the investor loses
significant influence over an associate should fiy@ied prospectively. The Group has

applied the amendments to IAS 28(2008) as partnpirdvements to IFRSs issued in
2010 in advance of their effective dates (annuailoge beginning on or after 1 July

2010).

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

The Interpretation provides guidance on the apmpatgmlaccounting treatment when an
entity distributes assets other than cash as didsléo its shareholders

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers

The Interpretation addresses the accounting bpiexts for transfers of property, plant
and equipment from ‘customers’ and concludes thanthe item of property, plant

and equipment transferred meets the definitionnoasset from the perspective of the
recipient, the recipient should recognise the aasets fair value on the date of the
transfer, with the credit being recognised as raeem accordance with IAS 18

Revenue.

Improvements to IFRSs issued in 2009
Except for the amendments to IAS 1, IAS 27, IFR&n3 IFRS 7, the application of

Improvements to IFRSs issued in 2009 has not hgdnzeterial effect on amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements.
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2. New and revised Standards and Interpretationsurisot yet adopted

The Group has not applied the following new andsex) IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRS 1 Limited Exemption from CompimealFRS 7 Disclosures for
First-time Adopters

Amendments to IFRS 1 Replacement of “fixed dates”dertain exceptions with “the
date of transition to IFRS

Amendments to IFRS 1 Additional Exemption for Hast Ceasing to Suffer from
Severe Hyperinflatioh

Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers ddifiéial Assefs

IFRS 9 (as amended in 2010) Financial Instrunients

IAS 24 (revised in 2009) Related Party Disclostires

Amendments to IAS 32 Classification of Right Issues

Amendments to IAS 12 Income taxes — Limited scopeermdiment (Recovery of
Underlying Asset$)

Amendments to IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a Minimumdtum Requiremefit

IFRIC 19 Extinguishment Financial Liabilities wiquity Instruments

Improvements to IFRSs issued in 2010 (except ferattmendments to IFRS 3 (2008), IFRS
7, IAS l1and IAS 28 described earlier in section2.1

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or afteduly 2010

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or mfteuly 2011

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or matteJanuary 2013

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or atteJanuary 2011

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or mfté-ebruary 2010

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or afteJanuary 2012

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or mfteJuly 2010 and 1 January 2011, as appropriate

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments issued in November92@0d amended in October 2010
introduces new requirements for the classificatod measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities and for derecognition.

* IFRS 9 requires all recognised financial asset$ #na within the scope of IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measureneriie subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debvastments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect th&trectual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely paymengioicipal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised abghe end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments aqdity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent accogmeriods.

* The most significant effect of IFRS 9 regarding thassification and measurement of
financial liabilities relates to the accounting fananges in fair value of a financial
liability (designated as at fair value through jirof loss) attributable to changes in the
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credit risk of that liability. Specifically, unddFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are

designated as at fair value through profit or ltlss,amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable thanges in the credit risk of that liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income, unlessrebognition of the effects of

changes in the liability's credit risk in other quehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or lodsai@es in fair value attributable to a
financial liability's credit risk are not subseqtlgnreclassified to profit or loss.

Previously, under IAS 39, the entire amount of giange in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair valuedbgh profit or loss was recognised in
profit or loss.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginninganafter 1 January 2013, with earlier
application permitted.

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (as revised in9200odifies the definition of a related
party and simplifies disclosures for governmengated entities.

The disclosure exemptions introduced in IAS 24réassed in 2009) do not affect the Group
because the Group is not a government-relatedyeribwever, disclosures regarding
related party transactions and balances in thessotidated financial statements may be
affected when the revised version of the Standardpplied in future accounting periods
because some counterparties that did not previausigt the definition of a related party
may come within the scope of the Standard.

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Predmmt regarding Classification of
Rights Issues

The amendments to IAS 32 titled Classification ajif®s Issues address the classification of
certain rights issues denominated in a foreignenay as either an equity instrument or as a
financial liability. To date, the Group has notemed into any arrangements that would fall
within the scope of the amendments. However, ifGheup does enter into any rights issues
within the scope of the amendments in future actiogiperiods, the amendments to IAS 32
will have an impact on the classification of thoggts issues.

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities withdity Instruments

IFRIC 19 provides guidance regarding the accourfianghe extinguishment of a financial
liability by the issue of equity instruments. Totelathe Group has not entered into
transactions of this nature. However, if the Graolges enter into any such transactions in
the future, IFRIC 19 will affect the required acoting. In particular, under IFRIC 19,
equity instruments issued under such arrangemetitbevmeasured at their fair value, and
any difference between the carrying amount of tharicial liability extinguished and the
fair value of equity instruments issued will beagoised in profit or loss.
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3. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Adoption of IFRS 8 Operating Segments

The Group has adopted IFRS 8 Operating Segmentsoas 1 January 2009. IFRS 8
requires operating segments to be identified on Iasis of internal reports about
components of the Group that are regularly revietwethe chief operating decision maker
in order to allocate resources to the segmentst@r@dsess their performance. In contrast,
the predecessor Standard (IAS 14 Segment Reporggg)red an entity to identify two sets
of segments (business and geographical), usingks @and returns approach, with the
entity’s “system of internal financial reporting key management personnel” serving only
as the starting point for the identification of Bleegments.

Reportable segments

For management purposes, the Group is currentlgnizgd into six reportable segments:
towage, port terminals, ship agency, offshore,dtigg and shipyards. These divisions are
reported to the Group’s chief operating decisionkenafor the purposes of resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

Segment information relating to these businesspresented below:

2010
Non
Port Ship segment
Towage terminals _agency Offshore Logistics Shipyard activities Elimination Consolidated
uss uss uss uss uss uss uss uss uss

Revenue 156,179 228,001 17,620 28,034 102,448 115,913 - (72,644) 575,551
Operating profit 39,967 62,746 640 6,504 6,041 16,761  (43,366) (10,807) 78,486
Finance costs (3.997) (1,730 9 (3.129 _ (2,885 (7 - 3 (11,814
Operating profit adjusted by finance cost 35,970 61,016 631 3,379 3,156 16,690 (43,366 (10,804) 66,672
Investment income 13,940
Capital gain in joint venture transaction 20,407
Profit before tax 101,019
Other information

Capital expenditures (36,180 (52,657 (727 (39183 (28,714 (7,213 (2,063 - (166,739

Depreciation and amortization (13,379 (13,539 (173 (6,619 (7,090 (139 (1,895 - (42,922
Balance Sheet

Segment assets 203,479 295,008 7,405 156,040 79,496 81,928 115,413 - 938,769

Segment liabilities (113,419) (118,798) (6.686) (133,041) (61.947) (33.428) (6.408) - (473,727)

2009
Non
Port Ship segment
Towage terminals _agency Offshore Logistics Shipyard activities Elimination Consolidated
Uss uss uss uss uss uss uss uss uss

Revenue 145,707 175,408 15,204 38,144 75,788 110,445 212 (83,020) 477,888
Operating profit 52,050 46,562 2,171 13,711 3,311 22,226  (31,276) (12,455) 96,300
Finance costs (3.418 (553 (92 (2903 (1.333 (129 (1,139 - (9,559
Operating profit adjusted by finance cost 48,632 46,009 2,079 10,808 1,978 22,102 (32,409 (12,455 86,745
Investment income 34,343
Profit before tax 121,088
Other information

Capital expenditures (67,8977 (31,979 (169) (33.33) (14944 (1.259 - - (149,553

Depreciation and amortization (9,261 (11,723 (162 (5,478 (3,742 (99 (1,602 - (32,065)
Balance Sheet

Segment assets 168,156 227,992 _5,027 129,500 43,451 83,811 150,250 - 808,187

Segment liabilities (117,780)  (71.149) (5.,541) (147,114) (27.968) (5.436) (9.720) - (384,708)
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2010
Non
Port Ship segment
Towage terminals _agency Offshore Logistics Shipyard activities Elimination Consolidated
R$ R$ R$ R$ R$ R$ R$ R$ R$

Revenue 260,225 379,895 29,358 46,710 170,699 193,134 (121,039) 958,982
Operating profit 66,592 104,546 1,066 10,837 10,066 27,927 (72,254) (18,007) 130,773
Finance costs (6.659 _ (2,883 (15 (5,209 _(4.809% (118 - 5 (19,682
Operating profit adjusted by finance cost 59,933101,663 1,051 _5,630 _ 5259 _27,809 (72,259 (18,009  _111,089
Investment income 23,227
Capital gain in joint venture transaction 34,002
Profit before tax 168,318
Other information

Capital expenditures (60,284 (87,737 (1,211 (65,287 (47,843 (12,023 (3.437 (277.82)

Depreciation and amortization (22,360 (22,559 (289 (11,020 (11,813 (223 (3.15% (71,51%
Balance Sheet

Segment assets 339,038 491,542 12,338 259,994 132,456 136,508 192,301 1,564,177

Segment liabilities (188,978) (197,941) (11,140 (221,673 (103,216 (55,699 (10,677 (789,323

2009
Non
Port Ship segment
Towage terminals _agency Offshore Logistics Shipyard activities Elimination Consolidated
R$ R$ R$ R$ R$ R$ R$ R$ R$

Revenue 253,705 305,420 26,473 66,416 131,962 192,306 370 (144,554) 832,098
Operating profit 90,629 81,074 3,780 23,874 5,765 38,699 (54,458) (21,686) 167,677
Finance costs (5.951 (963 (160 _(5.055 _(2.32) (213 (1,979 - (16,637
Operating profit adjusted by finance cost 88,67 _80,111 _3,620 _18,819 3,444 _ 38,482 (56,429 (21,686 151,040
Investment income 59,798
Profit before tax 210,838
Other information

Capital expenditures (118,187 (55,680 (299 (58,039 (26,020 _(2,185 - (260,402

Depreciation and amortization (16,125 (20.409 (282 _(9.539 _ (6.51§ (173 (2,799 (55,832)
Balance Sheet

Segment assets 292,793 396,979 _8,753 225,485 _75,657 145,933 261,615 1,407,215

Segment liabilities (205,080) (123,885 (9,648 (256,159 (48,699 _(9,462) (16,925 (669,853

Financial expenses and respective liabilities wadlecated to reporting segments where
interest arises from loans is related to financthefacquisition, or the construction of fixed
assets in that segment.

Financial income arising from bank balances helBrawzilian operating segments, including
foreign exchange variation on such balances, wetraliocated to the business segments as
cash management is performed centrally by the catpdunction. Administrative expenses
are presented as unallocated.

Geographical information

The Group's operations are mainly located in Brahke Group earns income on Cash and
Cash Equivalents invested in Bermuda and in Brani] incurs expenses on its activities in
the latter country.
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4. REVENUE

The following is an analysis of the Group's revefarghe year from continuing operations
(excluding investment revenue — see Note 7).

2010 2009 2010 2009

USs$ $ R$ R$
Sales of services 536,258 455,801 893,511 793,641
Revenue from construction contracts 39,293 22,087 65,471 38,457
Total 575,551 477,888 958,982 832,098

5. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

2010 2009 2010 2009

US$ uUSss R$ R$
Salaries and benefits 146,301 111,759 243,766 194,594
Social securities and charges 38,376 27,318 63,942 47,566
Pension costs 855 585 1,425 1,019
Long term incentive plan (Note 20) 13,204 9,424 22,001 16,409
Total 198,736 149,086 331,134 259,588

Pension costs are for defined contribution retineimeenefit schemes for all qualifying
employees of the Group’s Brazilian business. Grougributions to the scheme are at rates
specified in the rules of the plan. The assethefsctheme are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of independeamhagers.

6. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2010 2009 2010 2009

US$ Uss$ R$ R$
Service cost 64,365 54,233 107,245 94,430
Rent of tugs 26,243 25,830 43,726 44,975
Freight 19,954 20,619 33,247 35,902
Other rentals 24,448 17,765 40,735 30,932
Energy, water and communication 14,773 12,246 24,616 21,323
Container movement 12,307 10,394 20,506 18,098
Insurance 7,328 5,618 12,210 9,782
Maintenance 4,189 5,088 6,979 8,859
Allowance for doubtful debts (375) (1,569) (625) (2,731)
Other expenses 15,044 1,113 25,066 1,938
Total 188,276 151,337 313,705 263,508
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7. INVESTMENT INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

2010 2009 2010 2009
US$ uss R$ R$
Interest on investments 8,467 6,874 14,107 ,9691
Exchange gain on investments 3,794 24,031 6,322 41,843
Other interest income 1,679 3,438 2,798 5,986
Total investment income 13,940 34,343 23,227 59,798
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts (9,557) @, 72  (15,924) (13,449)
Exchange gain on loans 227 2,098 378 3,653
Interest on obligations under finance leases (1,848 (1,259 (3,079 (2,183
Total borrowing costs (11,178) (6,880) (18,625) ,97D)
Other interest (636 (2,679 (1,059 (4,658
Total finance costs (11,814 (9,559 (19,689 (16,639
8. INCOME TAX
Income tax recognized in profit or loss:
2010 2009 2010 2009
Current US$ uss$ R$ R$
Brazilian taxation
Income tax 22,709 31,402 37,838 54,677
Social contribution 8,480 12,022 14,130 20,933
Total Brazilian current tax 31,189 43,424 51,968 75,610
Deferred tax
Total deferred tax (675 (22,320 (1,225 (21,452
Total income tax 30,514 31,104 50,843 54,158

Brazilian income tax is calculated at 25% of theatde profit for the period. Brazilian
social contribution tax is calculated at 9% of tleable profit for the period.

The charge for the period is reconciled to theippsr the income statement as follows:

2010 2009 2010 2009
US$ uUss R$ R$
Profit before tax 101,019 121,088 168,318 21p,83
Tax at the standard Brazilian tax rate (34%) 34,347 41,170 57,228 71,685
Effect of exchange difference on non-
monetary items (13,295) (28,550) (22,152) (49,711)
Reversal of exchange variation on loans in
US Dollar 3,941 16,540 6,566 28,800
Effect of different tax rates in other
jurisdictions 5,409 2,844 9,012 4,953
Others 112 (900 189 (1,569
Income tax expense 30,514 31,104 50,843 54,158
Effective rate for the period 30% 26% 30% 26%

The tax rate used for the 2010 and 2009 reconoittiatabove is the corporate tax rate of
34% payable by entities in Brazil under tax lawhat jurisdiction.
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9.

10. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

GOODWILL

Cost and carrying amount attributed to:

Tecon Rio Grande
Tecon Salvador
Total

Cost

At January 1, 2009

Exchange differences
Translation adjustment to Real
At December 31, 2009
Additions

Exchange differences
Translation adjustment to Real
At December 31, 2010

Amortization

At January 1, 2009

Charge for the year

Exchange differences
Translation adjustment to Real
At December 31, 2009
Charge for the year

Exchange differences
Translation adjustment to Real
At December 31, 2010

Carrying amount
December 31, 2010
December 31, 2009

2010 2009 2010
US$ US$ R$
13,132 13,132 21,881
2,480 2480 4,132
15,612 15,612 26,013

-
9)]
&

3,238
824
4,062
14,546
606

19,214

2009
R$

22,865

4,319
27,184

For the purposes of testing goodwill for impairméogs, the Group prepares cash flow
forecasts for the relevant cash generating unitdmeRio Grande and Tecon Salvador)
derived from the most recent financial budget fa hext year and extrapolates cash flows
for the remaining life of the concession based mestimated annual growth of between 8%
and 10% for Tecon Rio Grande and 7% and 10% fooifegalvador. This rate does not
exceed the average long-term historical growth fatethe relevant market. After testing
goodwill as mentioned above, no impairment lossesewecognized for the periods
presented.

7,567
1,435
(1,929
7,073
24,236
1,009
(309
32,014

3,363
259
409

(857
3,174
813
103
(139
3,954
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Intangible assets arose from (i) the acquisitiothefconcession of the container and heavy
cargo terminal in Salvador (Tecon Salvador) in 2qBPthe purchase of the remaining 50%
of the concession rights for EADI Santo Andre (beshdvarehouse); and (iii) for the Ponta
Norte expansion (Tecon Salvador) in 2010.

Tecon Salvador signed on September 2, 2010, andcament to the lease agreement with
Companhia das Docas do Estado da Bahia (CODEBAs additive term, is for the

expansion of the area known as Ponta Norte, inStleador Port, adjacent to TECON
Salvador. An initial installment of US$14.5 millio(R$24.2 million) was paid as a
downpayment and a monthly price calculated on tesdd area and a new price for
container handling and general cargo, which arsistent with the original lease.

Intangible assets are amortized over the remaitgngs of the concessions at the time of

acquisition which, for Tecon Salvador is 25 ye&ws EADI Santo Andre is 10 years and for
Ponta Norte is 15 years.
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Cost or valuation

At January 1, 2009

Additions

Transfers

Exchange differences

Disposals

At December 31, 2009

Additions

Transfers

Exchange differences

Disposals

Net assets transferred to Joint
Venture transaction

At December 31, 2010

Accumulated depreciation

At January 1, 2009

Charge for the year

Exchange differences

Disposals

At December 31, 2009

Charge for the year

Exchange differences

Disposals

Net assets transferred to Joint
Venture transaction

At December 31, 2010

December 31, 2010
December 31, 2009

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and Floating Vehicles, Assets under
- plant and : Total
Buildings Craft . construction
equipment
Us$ Uss$ US$ US$ Uss$

86,709 228,200 101,666 19,651 436,226
23,265 3,737 27,172 95,379 149,553
- 52,653 - (52,653) -

8,700 - 14,032 - 22,732
(6,230 (4723 (589 - (7,286
112,444 284,118 142,286 62,377 601,225
30,959 6,908 64,175 64,697 166,739
- 98,429 - (98,429) -

2,112 - 4,701 - 6,813
(485) (574) (3,151) - (4,210)
(L3 (8,606 (1,099 (4,586 (14,309
145,017 380,275 206,914 24,059 756,265
21,655 73,770 35,779 - 131,204
5112 14,523 12,281 - 31,916
1,572 - 4,561 - 6,133
(6,197 (169 (589 - (6,906
22,182 88,128 52,037 - 162,347
5,695 19,806 16,932 - 42,433
432 - 1,780 - 2,212
(397) (122) (3,124) - (3,643)

)(4 (7,639 (273 - (7,916
27,908 100,173 67,352 - 195,433
117,109 280,102 139,562 24,059 560,832
90,262 195,990 90,249 62,377 438,878
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Land and

Vehicles, plar assets under

Buildings Floating and equipment construction Total
R$ R$ R$ R$ R$

Cost or valuation
At January 1, 2009 202,639 533,303 237,593 45,921,019,459
Additions 40,509 6,507 47,312 166,074 260,402
Transfers - 91,679 - (91,679) -
Exchange differences 15,149 - 24,433 - 39,582
Disposals (10,848) (822) (1,017) - (12,687)
Translation adjustment to Real (51,662 (135,96)1 (60,573 (11,70% (259,903
At December 31, 2009 195,787 494,706 247,748 ,60@8 1,046,853
Additions 51,584 11,510 106,928 107,799 277,821
Transfers - 164,003 - (164,003) -
Exchange differences 3,520 - 7,833 - 11,353
Disposals (808) (956) (5,251) - (7,015)
Net assets transferred to Joint Vent

transaction (22) (14,340) (1,829) (7,641) (23,832)
Translation adjustment to Real (8,434 (21,308 (10,669 (4,682 (45,092
At December 31, 2010 241,627 633,615 344,760 0880, 1,260,088
Accumulated depreciation
At January 1, 2009 50,607 172,400 83,616 - R,
Charge for the year 8,901 25,287 21,384 - 55,57
Exchange differences 2,737 - 7,942 - 10,679
Disposals (10,721) (287) (2,017) - (12,025)
Translation adjustment to Real (12,901 (43,95) (21,318 - (78,170
At December 31, 2009 38,623 153,449 90,607 - 2,8
Charge for the year 9,488 33,002 28,212 - 7,70
Exchange differences 720 - 2,967 - 3,687
Disposals (661) (203) (5,206) - (6,070)
Net assets transferred to Joint Veni

transaction (6) (12,728) (455) - (13,189)
Translation adjustment to Real (1,664 _ (6,612 (3,903 - (12,179
At December 31, 2010 46,500 166,908 112,222 - 25,680
December 31, 2010 195,127 466,707 232,538 40,086 934,458
December 31, 2009 157,164 341,257 157,141 108,612 764,174
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The cost amount of the Group's vehicles, plant eqdipment includes an amount of
US$24.9 million (R$41.5 million) (2009: US$23.0 fhiwh (R$40.0 million)) in respect of
assets held under finance leases.

Land and buildings with a net book value of US$8R8616) (2009: US$385 (R$670)) and
tugs with a net book value of US$2,587 (R$4,3100&@ US$2,794 (R$4,865)) have been
given in guarantee of various lawsuits.

The Group has pledged assets having a carrying rnodapproximately US$317.1 million
(R$528.4 million) (2009: US$235.4 million (R$40Mgllion)) to secure loans granted to
the Group.

The amount of capitalized interest in 2010 is U883, (R$3,147) (2009: US$728
(R$1,268)), at an average interest rate of 3.8330923.42%).

On December 31 2010, the Group had contractual doments to suppliers for the

acquisition and construction of property, plant aglipment amounting to US$116.4
million (R$194.0 million) (2009: US$23.7 million 1.2 million)). The amount mainly

refers to the expansion of Tecon Salvador and T&orGrande and to the construction of
the Guaruja Il shipyard.

When the Company entered the Joint Venture with ddages Navegacao Brasileira the

property, plant and equipment was reduced by US&hdlion (R$28.1 million), equivalent
to the portion of the net assets transferred tg#raer on setting up the joint venture.

12. INVENTORIES

2010 2009 2010 2009

us$ US$ R$ R$
Operating materials 11,024 9,758 18,368 16,991
Raw materials for construction
contracts (external customers) 9,123 10,929 15,201 19,030
Total 20,147 20,687 33,569 36,021

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2010 2009 2010 2009

US$ US$ R$ R$
Accounts receivable for services rendered 65,240 49,948 108,703 86,971
Allowance for doubtful debts (1,320) (1,637) (2,200  (2,850)
Income tax recoverable 8,203 5,484 13,667 9,547
Prepayments and recoverable taxes and
levies 62,838 51,704 104,701 90,027
Total 134,961 105,499 224,871 183,695
Total current 128,561 105,499 214,206 183,695
Total non-current 6,400 - 10,665 -
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Trade receivables disclosed are classified as diahassets measured at amortised cost.
Long term trade receivables refers to recoverabled with maturity dates of more than 365
days and mainly refers to PIS, COFINS, ISS and INBfere is any impairment evidence
for this asset.

The aging list of accounts receivable for serviegglered is shown below as follows:

2010 2009 2010 2009
US$ US$ R$ R$
Current 52,518 41,377 87,506 72,046
Overdue by:
01 to 30 days 7,351 5,051 12,248 8,796
31to 90 days 3,442 1,440 5,735 2,508
91 to 180 days 609 443 1,014 771
More than 180 days 1,320 1,637 2,200 2,850
Total 65,240 49,948 108,703 86,971

Allowances for doubtful debts are recognized desirgathe amount of accounts receivable
and is established whenever a loss is detectegédbars estimated irrecoverable amounts
determined by reference to past default experiehtiee counterparty and on an analysis of
the counterparty’s current financial position. TBeoup has recognized an allowance for
doubtful debts of 100% against all receivables d\89 days because historical experience
has been that receivables that are past due bdgihdays are not recoverable. Interest of 1
percent plus an average penalty of 2 percent isgeldato customers on overdue accounts
receivables balances.

Changes in allowance for doubtful debts are asidl

US$ R$
At January 1, 2009 2,761 6,452
Amounts written off during the period (4,177) 72)
Increase in allowance 2,423 4,220
Exchange difference 630 1,096
Translation adjustment to Real - (1,649
At December 31, 2009 1,637 2,850
Amounts written off during the period (2,288) g382)
Increase in allowance 1,910 3,182
Exchange difference 61 103
Translation adjustment to Real - (123
At December 31, 2010 1,320 2,200

Management believes that no additional accruaédgiired for the allowance for doubtful
debts.

As a matter of routine, the Group reviews taxes lamtes impacting its businesses with a
view to ensuring that payments of such amountsamnectly made and that no amounts are
paid unnecessarily. In this process, where it ifiooed that taxes and/or levies have been
overpaid, the Group takes appropriate measurectiver such amounts.
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14.

In 2007, the Group received a response to a catguitto tax officials confirming the
exemption of certain transactions to taxes whiah @roup had been paying through that
date. This response permits the Group to recoulp aoounts paid in the past provided that
the Group takes certain measures to demonstratatthas met the requirements of tax
regulations for such recovery. The Group conclutietiprocess at the end of 2009.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SHORT TERM INVESWMIENTS

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on haadg& accounts and short term
investments that are highly liquid and readily cenible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of chasgn value.

Cash and cash equivalents denominated in US Ddlmesent principally investments in

deposit certificates placed with major financiaktitutions. Cash and cash equivalents
denominated in Real represent principally investisiém deposit certificates and Brazilian

treasurys (mainly LFT).

Short term investments

Short term investments comprises investments waturty dates of more than 90 days but
less than 365 days.

The breakdown of cash and cash equivalents and tehor investments is as follows:

2010 2009 2010 2009
US$ S$ R$ R$
Denominated in US Dollar
Cash and cash equivalents 32,403 83,255 53,990 144,963
Short term investments 36,729 - 61,198 -
Total 69,132 83,255 115,188 144,963
Denominated in Real:

Cash and cash equivalents 85,769 94,881 142,908 165,207
Short term investments - 11,116 - 19,355
Total 85,769 105,997 142,908 184,562
Total cash and cash equivalents 118,172 178,136 196,898 310,170
Total short term investments 36,729 11,11 61,19 19,355

Private investment fund

The Group has investments in a private investmend fcalled the Hydrus Fixed Income
Private Credit Investment Fund that are consolilatethese financial statements. This
private investment fund comprises deposit certiisaand equivalent instruments, with final
maturities ranging from January 2011 to May 2018 &or government bonds, with final

maturities ranging from September 2012 to Septer20&5b.

About 86.1% of the securities included in the paitf of the Private Investment Fund have
daily liquidity and are marked to fair value on ailg basis against current earnings. This
private investment fund does not have significanaricial obligations. Any financial
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obligations are limited to service fees to the agganagement company employed to
execute investment transactions, audit fees aref stinilar expenses.

15. BANK OVERDRAFTS AND LOANS

Interest rate - % 2010 2009 2010 009
USt USt R¢ R¢
Unsecured borrowint
Bank overdrafts 12.4-15.45% p.a. 6,479 227 10,795 395
Total unsecured borrowings 6,479 227 10,795 395
Secured borrowing
BNDES - FINAME Real 45%to 14% p.a. 26,789 5,089 44,636 8,861
BNDES - FMM linked to US Dollar 2.64% to 5% p.a. 198,192 230,563 330,228 401,456
Total BNDES 224,981 235,652 374,864 410,317
IFC - US Dollar 2.99% to 8.49%a 9,813 14,080 16,350 24,516
IFC linked to Res 14.09% p.¢ 4,888 5,458 8,145 9,504
Total IFC 14,701 19,538 24,495 34,020
Eximbank - US Dollar 2.43% p.a. 14,818 - 24,690 -
Finimp - US Dollal 2.12%- 2.27% p.c 4,051 - 6,749 -
BB — FMM linked to US Dolla 3.10% p.¢ 49,131 - 81,862 -
Total secured borrowin 307,682 255,190 512,660 444,337
Total 314,161 255,417 523,455 444,732
The breakdown of bank overdrafts and loans by ntgtisras follows:
Us$ US$ R$ R$
Within one year 25,565 18,146 42,596 31,596
In the second year 26,194 20,545 43,644 35,773
In the third to fifth years (including) 82,187 60661 136,941 104,761
After five years 180,215 156,560 300,274 272,602
Total 314,161 255,417 523,455 444,732
Total current 25,565 18,146 42,596 31,596
Total non-current 288,596 237,271 480,859 413,136
The analysis of borrowings by currency is as foBow
Real Real
linked to linked to
Real US Dollars US Dollars Total Real US Dollars US Dollars Total
December 31, 2010 US$ US$ US$ US$ R$ R$ R$ R$
Bank overdrafts 6,479 - - 6,479 10,795 - - 10,795
Bank loans 31,677 247,323 28,682 307,682 52,781 412,090 47,789 512,660
Total 38,156 247,323 28,682 314,161 63,576 412,090 47,789 523,455
December 31, 2009
Bank overdrafts 227 - - 227 395 - - 395
Bank loans 10,547 230,563 14,080 255,190 18,365 401,456 24,516 444,337
Total 10,774 230,563 14,080 255417 18,760 401,456 24516 444,732
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The principal lenders of the Group are discussdadlbmsvs:

Brazilian Economic and Social Development Bank (IEES”), as an agent of Brazilian
Merchant Maritime Fund (“FMM”) finances tug boat darplatform supply vessel
construction, in the amount outstanding as of Ddxn81, 2010 of US$198.2 million
(R$330.2 million) (2009: US$230.6 million (R$401ngllion)). As of December 31, 2010
the BNDES’s FINAME product mainly finances equiprnar logistic operations, US$26.8
million (R$44.6 million) (2009: US$5.1 million (R million)). The amounts outstanding
at December 31, 2010 are repayable over periogangaup to 21 years. For the part linked
to US Dollars the loans carry fixed interest rdiesveen 2.64% and 5% per year, whereas
for the loans denominated in Real, the interesisrate between 4.5% and 14% per year.

The Banco do Brasil (“BB”), as an agent of Brazilislerchant Maritime Fund (“FMM”)
finances platform supply vessel’s constructionthe amount outstanding as of December
31, 2010 of US$49.1 million (R$81.9 million). Thigbility was assumed when the
Company entered the Joint Venture with Magallanasdgacao Brasileira. All contracts
are in a grace period and will be amortized fromuday 2012 and are repayable over
periods varying up to 18 years. These loans arerderated in the U.S. dollar and bear
fixed interest rates of 3.1% per year.

The International Finance Corporation (“IFC”) firtas both port terminals — Tecon Rio
Grande and Tecon Salvador. There are two loan mgnets with this bank: one for Tecon
Salvador and one for Tecon Rio Grande. The amouunttsanding at December 31, 2010
are repayable over periods varying up to 6 yednsesé& loans are denominated partly in the
US Dollar and partly in the Real. For the part édko the US Dollar, one of the loans has
an interest rate fixed at 8.49% per year, whiledtieers bear interest at a variable rate of
Libor (6 monthly) plus spread of between 2.5% t6%3.per year, whereas for the part
denominated in Real, the interest rate is fixet4ad9% per year.

The Export-Import Bank of China (“Eximbank”), finees Tecon Rio Grande’s equipment.
The amount is US$16.66 million, with initial outlay US$6.9 million in January 2010 and
a second outlay of US$7.8 million in October 20IBe outstanding amount is repayable
over 10 years, including a grace period of 2 yelng. amortization and interest payment are
6 monthly. The loan is denominated in US Dollarghva variable rate Libor (6 monthly).
The spread is 1.7% per year and there is a payfoel®ank Itai BBA’s guarantee of 2%
per year.

The Banco Itad BBA S.A. credit line, Finimp, finascTecon Rio Grande’s equipment. The
amount is US$4.0 million and is repayable up toefry, including a grace period of one
year. The amortization and interest payment areo6thly. The loan is denominated in US
Dollars with a variable rate (Libor — 6 month) aratries fixed interest rates of 1.63% per
year. The local commission for Banco Itat BBA SA1.75% per year.

Bank loans was reduced by US$12 million (R$20 wonillidue to the net assets transferred to
the partner on setting up the joint venture.

Guarantees
The loans from BNDES are secured by a pledge dwertiug boats and supply vessels

financed. Financing of three of the seven platfosopply vessels is guarantee by
receivables from the client Petrobras.
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The loans from BB are secured by a pledge ovestipply vessels that are financed, by a
“Standby Letter of Credit” and by fiduciary assigemb of long-term contracts with
Petrobras.

The loans from the IFC are secured by the Groupases in Tecon Salvador and Tecon Rio
Grande, the projects cash flows, and, in the cds€eoon Rio Grande, equipment and
building.

The loan with “The Export-Import Bank of China” secured by a “Standby Letter of
Credit” issued for Tecon Rio Grande, with a finangcbank as beneficiary.

As counter-guarantee for the operation, Tecon Rian@e obtained a formal authorization
of the IFC trustee to dispose the equipment furmetiThe Export-Import Bank of China”
to the bank Itau BBA.

Undrawn borrowing facilities

At December 31, 2010, the Group had available US$Billion of undrawn borrowing
facilities. This value includes fifty percent oktlban agreements on September 28, 2010, as
described below. For every disbursement thereset af conditions precedent that should be
fulfilled.

Loan agreements signed

On September 28, 2010, the Group signed a US$ 6lfi@nrinancing Agreement. The
Financing Agreement is between the joint venturdsti, Sons Ultratug Offshore and
BNDES as agent for the Fundo da Marinha MercantdM})- The 18 year financing
includes a three year repayment grace period andtesded for the construction of 13
Offshore Support Vessels (OSV’s), to be construgidte Wilson, Sons’ Shipyards.

The 13 vessels are expected to be delivered beteady 2011 and 2015 increasing the
joint venture fleet to 24 vessels. Construction hiieady commenced on three of the
vessels.

Fair value

Management estimates the fair value of the Grdugrowings as follows:

2010 2009 2010 2009
US$ US$ R$ R$
Bank overdrafts 6,479 227 10,794 395
Bank loans
BNDES 224981 235,652 374,864 410,317
IFC 15,096 20,160 25,152 35,103
Eximbank 14,818 - 24,690 -
Finimp 4,051 - 6,749 -
BB 49,131 - 81,862 -
Total bank loans 308,077 255,812 513,317 445,420
Total 314,556 256,039 524,111 445,815
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Covenants

The subsidiaries Tecon Rio Grande and Tecon Salvaae specific restrictive clauses in
their financing contracts with financial instituti® related, basically, to the maintenance of
liquidity ratios. At December 31, 2010, the Grogpn compliance with all clauses of these

contracts.

16. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax assets katdalities recognized by the Group

during the current and prior reporting periods:

At January 1, 2009
(Charge)/Credit to income
Exchange differences

At December 31, 2009
(Charge)/Credit to income

Deferred tax booked in disposed investmi

Exchange differences
At December 31, 2010

At January 1, 2009
(Charge)/Credit to income
Exchange differences
Translation adjustment to Real
At December 31, 2009
(Charge)/Credit to income

Deferred tax booked in disposed investmi

Exchange differences
Translation adjustment to Real
At December 31, 2010

Exchange Non-
Accelerated variance  Timing monetary
depreciatior on loans differences items Total
US$ US$ US$ US$ USs$
(13,243 1,906 10,618 (4,029 (4,743
(8,351)  (15,156) 741 35,086 12,320
- 3 1,779 - 1,782
(21,599 13,24 13,138 31,062 9,359
(5,869) (1,484) 1,415 6,613 675
5,058 2,885 216 (4,686) 3,473
- 35 308 - 343
(22,405 (11,81) 15.077 32,989 13,850
Exchange Non-
Accelerated variance  Timing monetary
depreciation onloans differences items Total
R$ R$ R$ R$ R$
(30,949 4,454 24,815 (9,409 (11,089
(14,541)  (26,390) 1,290 61,092 21,452
- 5 3,098 - 3,102
7,891 (1,139 (6,327 2,397 2,826
(37,599 (23,069 22,876 54,085 16,296
(9,779) (2,473) 2,358 11,019 1,125
8,427 4,806 359 (7,808) 5,784
- 58 513 - 571
1,619 995 (983 (2,330 (699
(37,339 (19,680 25,123 54,966 23,077

Certain tax assets and liabilities have been oftsetan entity by entity basis. In the

consolidated financial statements, a deferred $aetaof one entity in the Group cannot be
offset against a deferred tax liability of anotlegtity in the Group as there is no legally
enforceable right to offset tax assets and liaédibetween Group companies. After offset,
deferred tax balances are presented in the batdres as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets
Total

2010
US$

(15,073)
28,923
13,850

N

00

S

o

(16,140)
25,499
9,359

2010
R$

(25,115)

48,192
23,077

2009
R$

(28,102)
44,398
16,296
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17.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unusddsses of US$30,487 (R$50,797) (2009:
US$23,664 (R$41,203)) available for offset agafiustire fiscal profits. No deferred tax

asset has been recognized in the amount of US¥QR$17,272) (2009: US$ 8,046

(R$14,009)) due to the unpredictability of fututeeams of related taxable income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise on Biazilproperty, plant and equipment,

inventories and prepaid expense held in US Dollactional currency businesses. Deferred
tax is calculated on the difference between thioheal US Dollar balances recorded in the
Group’s accounts and the Real balances used @Grihgp's Brazilian tax calculations.

Deferred tax liabilities arise from exchange gaors the Group’s US Dollar and Real
denominated loans linked to the US Dollar that taseable on settlement and not in the
period in which the gains arise.

PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENCIES
Uss R$

At January 1, 2009 8455 19,759
Addition provision in the year 2,192 3,818
Reversal of provision in the year (3,846) (6)697
Exchange difference 3,030 5,275
Translation adjustment to Real - (5,03%

At December 31, 2009 9,831 17,118
Addition provision in the year 4,464 7,437
Reversal of provision in the year (2,575) (4290
Exchange difference 569 947
Translation adjustment to Real -_ (739

At December 31, 2010 12,289 20,476

The breakdown of classes of provision is descrlimddw as follows:

2010 2009 2010 2009
US$ US$ R$ R$

Civil cases 1,128 781 1,879 1,360

Tax cases 261 921 435 1,604

Labor claims 10,900 8,129 18,162 14,154

Total 12,289 9,831 20,476 17,118

In the normal course of business in Brazil, theuproontinues to be exposed to humerous
local legal claims. It is the Group's policy to @rgusly contest such claims, many of which
appear to have little substance in merit, and taoagea such claims through its legal

advisors. There are no material claims outstandin@ecember 31, 2010 which have not
been provided for and which the Group's legal agisonsider are more likely than not to

result in a financial settlement against the Group.
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In addition to the cases for which the Group boakedprovision for contingencies there are
other tax, civil and labor disputes amounting to$68%404 (R$88,981) (2009: US$60,355
(R$105,089)), whose probability of loss was esteddiy the legal advisors as possible.

The breakdown of possible claims is described belsyiollows:

2010 2009 2010 2009
US$ US$ R$ RS
Civil cases 7,259 6,001 12,094 10,449
Tax cases 15,829 12,220 26,375 21,277
Labor claims 30,316 42,134 50,512 73,363
Total 53,404 60,355 88,981 105,089

The main probable and possible claims against theisare described below:

» Civil and Environmental cases: Discussions on emtiral matters related to a punctual
disagreement in transport supply contract and d¢ssdamands based on service
contracts, regarding some of its obligations.

» Labor claims: These lawsuits litigate about saldifferences, overtime worked without
payments, and other additional.

» Tax cases: The Group itself litigates against #spective governments in respect of
Group considers inappropriate.
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18. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

2010 2009 2010 2009
US$ Us$ Uss$ Us$
Amounts payable under finance leases:
Within one year 5,921 5,263 4,847 3,902
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 7,098 9,950 6,305 8,653
13,019 15,213 11,152 12,555
Less future finance charges (1,869 (2,658 N/A N/A
Present value of lease obligations 11,152 12,555
Total current 4,847 3,902 4,847 3,902
Total non-current 6,305 8,653 6,305 8,653

Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

2010 2009 2010 2009
R$ R$ R$ R$

Amounts payable under finance leases:
Within one year 9,866 9,164 8,076 6,793
In the second to fifth years inclusive 11,826 17,324 10,505 15,067

21,692 26,488 18,581 21,860
Less future finance charges (3,119 (4,628 N/A N/A
Present value of lease obligations 18,581 21,860
Total current 8,076 6,793 8.076 6,793
Total non-current 10,505 15,067 10,505 15,067

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of itetdres and equipment under finance leases.
The average lease term is forty-seven months, afhwlat the end of December 2010, there
remained only twenty-six months on average.

For the year ended December 31, 2010 the averdgetieé leasing interest rate was
15.87% per year (2009: 15.21%). Interest ratesbed at contract date.

All leases include a fixed repayment and a varidiolance charge linked to the Brazilian
interest rate. The interest rates ranges from %0.@620.39% per year.

Leases are denominated in Reais.
The fair value of the Group's lease obligationthes present value of the future instalments
of each contract calculated with its own interegerand is approximately equal to their

carrying amount.

The Group's obligations under finance leases atarsé by the lessors' rights over the
leased assets.
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19.

20.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2010 2009 2010 2009

US$ US$ R$ R$
Suppliers 70,353 61,756 117,222 107,530
Taxes 16,657 11,847 27,754 20,628
Share-based payment (provision) 23,795 10,591 39,64 18,441
Accruals and other payables 6,893 5,733 11,485 9,982
Total 117,698 89,927 196,108 156,581

The Group has financial risk management policieglate to ensure that payables are paid
within the credit timeframe.

2010 2009 2010 2009
US$ US$ R$ R$
Construction contracts
Contracts in progress at the end of each
reporting period:
Contract costs incurred plus recognized
revenues less recognized losses to date 41,632 80122, 69,367 39,712
Less billings in process (58,705 (35,20% (97,819 (61,302
Net liability included in suppliers (17,0y3 (12,400 (28,447 (21,5909

CASH-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

On April 9, 2007, the board of Wilson Sons Limitegproved a stock option plan (the
“Share-Based Payment” or “Long-Term Incentive Scé§mwhich allows for the grant of
phantom options to eligible employees to be setkbiethe board over the next five years.
The options will provide cash payments, on exercissed on the number of options
multiplied by the growth in the price of a Brazili®epositary Receipts (“BDR”) of Wilson
Sons Limited between the date of grant (the BaseePrand the date of exercise (the
“Exercise Price”). The plan is regulated by theday Bermuda.

The changes on the accrual for the plan are asisll

US$ R$
Liability at January 1, 2009 1,167 2,728
Charge for the year 9,424 16,409
Translation adjustment to Real - (699
Liability at December 31, 2009 10,591 18,441
Charge for the year 13,204 22,001
Translation adjustment to Real - (795
Liability at December 31, 2010 23,795 39,647
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The liability above is included in “Share-Based Pant” presented in Note 19.

2010
Number
of share options

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,912,760
Granted (surrendered) during the year (15,000
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,897,760

The fair value of the recorded liability in the ammb of US$23,795 (R$39,647) (2009:
US$10,591 (R$18,441)) was determined using the rBiab model based on the
assumptions mentioned below:

2010 2009
Closing share price (in real) R$32.00 R$21.48
Expected volatility 26-32% 34%
Expected life 10 years 10 years
Risk free rate 8.60% 9.49%
Expected dividend yield 1.80% 2.2%

Expected volatility was determined by calculatitg thistorical volatility of the Group’s
share price. The expected life used in the modelbeen adjusted based on management’s
best estimate for exercise restrictions and behavionsiderations.

Options series Number Grant date Vesting date Expiry date Exercise price
(R$)
07 ESO - 2 Year 940,690 5/5/2007 5/5/2009 5/5/2017 23.77
07 ESO - 3 Year 940,690 5/5/2007 5/5/2010 5/5/2017 23.77
07 ESO — 4 Year 940,690 5/5/2007 5/5/2011 5/5/2017 23.77
07 ESO -5 Year 940,690 5/5/2007 5/5/2012 5/5/2017 23.77
08 ESO — 2 Year 33,75015/8/2008 17/8/2010 17/8/2019 18.70
08 ESO — 3 Year 33,75015/8/2008 17/8/2011 17/8/2019 18.70
08 ESO — 4 Year 33,75015/8/2008 17/8/2012 17/8/2019 18.70
08 ESO -5 Year 33,75015/8/2008 17/8/2013 17/8/2019 18.70

The options terminate on the Expiry date or witbime month of the resignation of the
director or senior employee, whichever is earlier.

Share options outstanding at the end of the yeahaeighted average exercise price of R$
23.59 (2009: R$23.60) and a weighted average réngaicontractual life of 2,346 days
(2009: 2,712 days).

The Group, to show the sensitivity of the chargeltanges in the share price, considered a
10% increase/decrease in the share price. In ezsmy the dividend yield was adjusted in
line with the change in share price, but all otlssumptions were kept unchanged,
including the volatility of the share price.
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21.

Actual (+10%) (-10%)

Share price at December 31, 2010 - R$ 32.00 35.20 8.802
US$ US$ US$

Balance sheet liability at December 31, 2010 23,795 28,662 20,071
R$ R$ R$

Balance sheet liability at December 31, 2010 39,648 47,757 33,442

The sensitivities here are notional and purely ifdormation as the share price on the
reporting date is a known fact.

EQUITY

Share Capital

2010 2009 2010 2009
US$ US$ R$ R$
71,144,000 ordinary shares issued
and fully paid 9,905 9,905 16,504 17,247

Dividends

According to the Company’s by-laws, an amount ofless than 25% of the Adjusted Net
Profit for the current year shall be declared by Board as a dividend to be paid to the
Members before the next Annual General Meeting. Oyxaws provided that the dividend
will be mandatory unless the Board considers tmatayment of such dividends will not be
in the interests of the Company. The final dividendubject to approval by shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting.

Amounts recognized as distributions to owners efGompany:

2010 2009 2010 2009
Us$ US$ RS R$

Dividends 22,551 16,007 37,574 27,871
Total 22,551 16,007 37,574 27871

In the Board Meeting held on May 11, 2010 the Bazr®irectors declared the payment of
a dividend in the amount of US$0.317 cents peresflR$0.528 cents per share) in the total
amount of US$22,551 (R$37,574) to Shareholderseobérd as at May 11, 2010 and the
payment of such dividend on May 17, 2010.
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22.

Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earningsghare is based on the following data:

2010 2009 2010 2009

Us$ uUs$ R$ R$
Profit for the year attributable to owners of then(pany 69,996 88,531 116,627 154,149
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 71,004,071,144,000 71,144,000 71,144,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents peeghar 98.4 124.4 163.9 216.7

Profit reserve

An amount equal to 5% of the Company’s net praifitthe current year is to be credited to a
retained earnings account to be called “Profit Reseuntil such account equals 20% of the
Company’s paid up share capital. The Company dagsretognize any further profit
reserve, because it has already reached the lir2@% of share capital.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve arises from exchange diffes on the translation of operations
with a functional currency other than the US Dollar

SUBSIDIARIES

The Group acquired the minority 25% share participain Brasco Logistica Offshore Ltda.
As a result of this transaction, the Group becdmeesble owner of 100% of Brasco’s total
share capital.

The transaction was completed on June 16, 20160, avitonsideration of US$9.0 million
(R$15.0 million) measured by reference to the failue, for the acquisition of shares
equivalent to 25% of the total Brasco share capithls transaction resulted in additional
paid in capital of US$4.9 million (R$8.1 milliongworted in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

Created in 1999, Brasco is an integrated port agistics service provider to the Oil & Gas

industry in Brazil. The company has support bagethé cities of Niteroi, Rio de Janeiro,
and Guaxindiba (Rio de Janeiro); Sao Luis (Maraphdind Vitéria (Espirito Santo).
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Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at DecemhiePB810 are as follows:

Place o Proportion  Method use
incorporatior of ownershij  to accour
and operation __interest  for investment

Holding compan

Wilson Sons de Administracdo e Comércioa. Brazil 100% Consolidatiol

Vis Limited Guernse) 100% Consolidatiol
Towage

Saveiros Camuyrano Servigos Maritimos - Brazil 100% Consolidatiol

Sobrar-Servemar Ltdi Brazil 100% Consolidatiol

Wilson Sons Apoio Maritimo Ltd Brazil 100% Consolidatiol

Wilson Sons Operacdes Maritimas Especiais Ltda. Brazil 100% Consolidation
Shipyarc

Wilson, Sons S.A. Comércio, Industria, e Agér

de Navegacdao Ltc Brazil 100% Consolidatiol

Wilson Sons Estaleiro Ltda. Brazil 100% Cordation
Ship Agenc

Wilson Sons Agéncia Maritima Ltc Brazil 100% Consolidatiol

Wilson Sons Navegacao Lt Brazil 100% Consolidatiol

Transamérica Visas Servi¢os de Despachos Ltda. razilB 100% Consolidation
Logistics

EADI Santo André Terminal de Carga Li Brazil 100% Consolidatiol

Wilson, Sons Logistica Ltc Brazil 100% Consolidatiol
Port terminal

Brasco Logistica Offshore Lt Brazil 100% Consolidatiol

Tecon Rio Grande S. Brazil 100% Corsolidatior

Tecon Salvador S.. Brazil 100% Consolidatiol

Wilport Operadores Portuarios Ltda. Brazil 100% Consolidation

Wilson, Sons Operadores Portuarios L Brazil 100% Consolidatiol

Wilson, Sons Terminais de Cargas L Brazil 100% Consolidatiol

The Group also has 100% of ownership interest Brazilian Private Investment Fund
called the Hydrus Fixed Income Private Credit Invesit Fund. This fund is managed by
Ital bank and its policies and objectives are detexd by the Group’s treasury (Note 14).

In 2010, Wilson, Sons Offshore S.A. and Wilson, Sdditratug S.A. became Joint
Ventures, ceasing to be subsidiaries.

23. JOINT VENTURES

On 28 May 2010 the Group finalised the offshorentjoienture "Wilson, Sons Ultratug
Participacoes S.A" with Remolcadores Ultratug Ltdasubsidiary of Ultratug Ltda, a
Chilean Group.

The Group contributed its 50% participation of fhat venture with the issued shares of
Wilson, Sons Offshore S.A., the company that ownd aperates the Group's offshore
supply vessels. The Ultratug Group contributed5@86 participation of the joint venture

with the issued shares of Magallanes Navegacadl@rasS.A., the owner of the Ultratug

Group's offshore operations in Brazil and US$14il8on in cash.
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A gain of US$20.4 million calculated based on SIQ&S realized on formation of the joint
venture as set out below.

US$ R$
Wilsons Sons share of fair value of the assetsitmted by Magallanes 16,165 26,935
Less Carrying value of Wilsons Sons Offshore S.A. 6,2@8) (10,344)
Consolidation elimination of intercompany profit ,480 17,411
Wilsons Sons contribution at net book value 4,242 7,068
Total gain on joint venture formation* 20,407 34,002

*See note 27 for more details for net assets.

Consolidation elimination of intercompany profipresents profits on the construction of
PSVs in the Groups shipyards previously eliminatedonsolidation.

The Group has the following significant interestgaint ventures at December 31, 2010:

Place of Proportion Method used
incorporation of ownership to account
and operation __interest for investment

Towage
Consorcio de Rebocadores Barra de Coqueiros iIBraz 50% Propor.tlon'al
Consolidation
Consorcio de Rebocadores Baia de Sao Marcos il Braz 50% Propor_tlon_al
Consolidation
Non-vessel operating common carrier
Allink Transportes Internacionais Limitada Bilazi 50% Propor_tlon_al
Consolidation
Offshore
Wilson, Sons Ultratug Participagdes S.A.* Brazil 50% Proportional

Consolidation

* Wilson, Sons Ultratug Participacbes S.A. contrdlslson, Sons Offshore S.A. and
Magallanes Navegacdo Brasileira S.A.. These latter companies are indirect joint
ventures of the Company.

The following amounts are included in the Groupfericial statements as a result of
proportionate consolidation of joint ventures.

2010 2009 2010 2009

US$ uUSss R$ R$
Current assets 17,991 3,639 29,977 6,336
Non-current assets 127,213 2,297 211,963 4,000
Current liabilities (31,976) (4,744) (53,278) (8,260)
Non-current liabilities (109,242) (21) (182,020) 713

2010 2009 2010 2009

US$ uUss R$ R$
Income 35,817 15,963 59,678 27,795
Expenses (30,860) (14,748) (51,419) (25,679)
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24.

In 2010, Wilson, Sons Offshore S.A. and Wilson, Sbtitratug S.A. became joint ventures
and their proportional contributions are equivadenteight months results.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

2010 2009 2010 2009
US$ US$ R$ R$
Minimum lease payments under operating
leases recognized in income for the year BL,52 12,440 24,207 21,661

At December 31, 2010, the minimum amount due byGheup for future minimum lease
payments under cancellable operating leases wad3)3%8 (R$22,774) (2009: US$8,390
(R$14,608)).

Lease commitments for land and buildings with antef over 5 years are recognized as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease fEBnese operating lease arrangements are
between Tecon Rio Grande and the Rio Grande ptrbaty, and between Tecon Salvador
and the Salvador port authority. The Tecon Rio @eaconcession expires in 2022 and the
Tecon Salvador concession in 2025.

The Tecon Rio Grande guaranteed payments consiatooglements; a fixed rental, and fee
per 1,000 containers moved based on forecast velunaele by the consortium. The amount
shown in the accounts is based on the minimum veltorecast. Volumes are forecast to
rise in future years. If container volumes movedotigh the terminal exceed forecast
volumes in any given year additional payments ballrequired.

Tecon Salvador guaranteed payments consists of #ements; a fixed rental, a fee per
container moved based on minimum forecast volumdsadee per ton of non-containerized
cargo moved based on minimum forecast volumes.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstgnobmmitments for future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operatingdeasich fall due as follows:

2010 2009 2010 2009

US$ US$ R$ R$
Within one year 2,211 1,453 3,684 2,530
In the second to fifth year inclusive 18,425 13,557 30,700 23,605
Total 20,636 15,010 34,384 26,135

Non-cancellable lease payments represent rentahgatg by the Group for the bonded
warehouse used by EADI Santo Andre

In November, 2008 the Group's renewed the conaessioperate the EADI Santo Andre (a
bonded warehouse) for a further ten years. With, thie Group’s management renewed the
rental agreement contract of the bonded warehosese loy EADI Santo Andre for the same
period. The unexpired lease period at DecembeB10 is 9 years and 4 months. These
rental payments are updated by a Brazilian gemeflation index (IGPM - General Market
Price Index).
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK ASSESSMENT

a)

b)

d)

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that emtin the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximizing theirreto stakeholders through the
optimization of the debt and equity balance. Thaitaastructure of the Group consists
of debt, which includes the borrowing disclosedNimie 15, cash and cash equivalents.
And short term investments disclosed in note 14eaqdty attributable to owners of the
parent comprising issued capital, reserves anthegtaarnings as disclosed in Note 21.

Categories of financial instruments:

Fair value Book value
2010 2009 2010 2009
uss uss uss uss
Financial assets:
Loans and receivables (includes: cash and cashadeuis,
short term investments and trade and other receispb 289,862 294,751 289,862 294,751
Financial liabilities:
Other financial liabilities (includes: bank loarredaoverdrafts,
obligations under finance leases and trade and pthyables) 443,406 358,521 443,411 357,899
Fair value Book value
2010 2009 2010 2009
R$ R$ R$ R$
Financial assets:
Loans and receivables (includes: cash and cashadeuis,
short term investments and trade and other receispb 482,697 513,220 482,697 513,220
Financial liabilities:
Other financial liabilities (includes: bank loarrsdaoverdrafts,
obligations under finance leases and trade and ptyables) 738,799 624,256 738,144 623,173

Financial risk management objectives

The Group’s Structured Operations Department manigmd manages financial risks

related to the operations and coordinates accedsn@stic and international financial

markets. These risks include market risk (curreang interest rate variation), credit

risk and liquidity risk. The primary objective is keep a minimum exposure to those
risks by using non-derivative financial instrumeatsl by assessing and controlling the
credit and liquidity risks.

Foreign currency risk management

The operating cash flows are subject to fluctuationcurrency, because they are
denominated part in Real and part in US Dollarg froportions of which vary
according to the characteristics of each businesgeneral terms, for operating cash
flows, the Group seeks to neutralize the curremsly oy matching assets (receivables)
and liabilities (payments). Furthermore, the Greepks to generate an operating cash
surplus in the same currency in which the debtisermf each business is denominated.

Cash flows from investments in fixed assets aretimagenominated in Real and US

Dollars. These investments are subject to curreiheostuations within the period
between when goods or services are contracted rengbrice is determined and the
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e)

actual date of payment of those goods and servidesse flows are monitored with the
purpose of matching the currencies of sources aed af funds and their due dates.

The Group has contracted debt that is US Dollacdenated and Real-denominated,
and the cash and cash equivalents balances arsna¢sted in US Dollar-denominated
and Real-denominated vehicles.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign curgedenominated monetary assets
and monetary liabilities at the reporting datesaaéollows:

Assets Liabilities
2010 2009 2010 2009
Uss Uss$ Uss Uss
Amounts denominated in Real 255,565 327,593 159,56 129,292
Assets Liabilities
2010 2009 2010 2009
R$ R$ R$ R$
Amounts denominated in Real 425,822 570,405 265,87 225,123
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
Exchange rates
Possible Scenario
Probable Scenario (25%)
R$1.75/US$1.00 R$2.1875/US$1.00
Probable Possible Scenario
Operation Risk Amount in USD Result Scenario (25%)
Total assets BRL 255,565 Exchange effects (12,238) (60,903)
Total liabilities BRL 159,567 Exchange effects 7,641 38,026
Net effect on results (4,597 (22,8779

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk asiestwithin the Group borrow funds at
both fixed and floating interest rates. BNDES arah® do Brasil (“BB”), providing
funds from the Brazilian Merchant Maritime Fund K1M”), charge fixed interest rates
on loans for vessel construction. Since these @edixed and they are below market
interest rates, the Group understands that thdarskese contracts is low.

As for the financing of Port Operations, the Graugstrategy for interest rate
management has been to maintain a balanced portiblfixed and floating interest
rates depending on market conditions and yieldesur¥he Company's interest rate risk
management strategy may use derivative instrunterrisduce debt cost attributable to
interest rate volatility.

The BNDES’'s FINAME product and the financial leaggiprovide financing for
equipment in our Logistics Operations. The interedge for BNDES's FINAME
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product is the Long Term Interest Rate (“TJLP”) dhdre are no instruments on the
market to mitigate fluctuations of this rate. Howg\the risk is considered low because
the rate is determined below market rates, it 8elothan the interest rate of the
economy (Selic), and has the inflation target as @inthe components of its calculation
(as well as the Selic).

The Real-linked investments vyield interest rateat tfollow the “DI” (Brazilian
Interbank interest rates) daily variation for ptelg-issued securities and/or “Selic-
Over” government-issued bonds. The US Dollar-linkagestments are time deposits,
with short-term maturities.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following analysis considers a notional vaoatof revenue or expenses associated
with the operations and scenarios shown, withoytigapact on fair value.

Libor interest rate

Probable Possible
Operation Scenario Scenario 25%
Loans 0.78% 0.98%
Investments 0.45% 0.57%
Possible
Probable Scenario
Operation Risk Principal US Dollars Result Scenario 25%
Loan IFC Libor 6,122 Loan Interest (14) (22)
Loan Eximbank Libor 14,818 Loan Interest (8) (34)
Loan Finimp Libor 4,051 Loan Interest (5) (12)
Investments Libor 68,831 Investment Income (81) 1
Net Effect (108) (65)
CDI interest rate
Probable Possible
Operation Scenario Scenario 25%
Investments 12.44% 15.55%
Probable Possible
Operation Risk Principal US Dollars Result Scenario  Scenario 25%
Investments CDI 82,983 Investment incomt 918 3,113
Net effect 918 3,113

The net effect was obtained by assuming a scef@rithe 12 months starting January
1, 2011 in which interest rates and all other \@es remain constant.

The other loans bear a fixed interest rate ancesgmt 89.0% of the total loans.

The investment rate risk mix is 45.3% Libor and/4.CDI
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f) Liquidity risk management

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining qukge cash reserves, banking
facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by dombusly monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows and matching the maturity prefdéfinancial assets and liabilities.

The following tables detail the Group's remainimgntcactual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables haveeelm drawn up based on the
undiscounteatash flows of financial liabilities based on thelieat date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includéis imberest and principal cash flows.

Weighted
average
effective Less than More than
interest rate 12 months 1-5 years 5 years Total
% uss uUss$ uUss$ uss
2010
Finance lease liability 15.87% 4,847 6,184 121 52,1
Variable interest rate instruments 4.73% 5,261 49,6 7,851 32,781
Fixed interest rate instruments 3.95% 20,304 88,712 172,364 281,380
30,412 114,565 180,336 325,313
Weighted
average
effective Less than More than
interest rate 12 months 1-5 years 5 years Total
% uss uss$ uss$ uss$
2009
Finance lease liability 15.21% 4,895 10,460 - 15,35
Variable interest rate instruments 3.47% 3,402 3,49 1,571 9,466
Fixed interest rate instruments 3.99% _ 14,744 76,217 154,989 245,950
23,041 91,170 156,560 270,771

g) Credit Risk

The Group’s credit risk can be attributed mainlyb@ances such as cash and cash
equivalents and trade accounts receivable. TheuatEoeceivable in the balance sheet
are shown net of the provision for doubtful recbiea. The valuation provision is
booked whenever a loss is detected, which, basegash experience, evidences
impaired possibility of recovering cash flows.

The Group invests surplus temporarily cash in govent bonds and in private
investment funds with regulations approved by Mamagnt which follow Group policy
on concentration of credit risk. Credit risk on eéstments is non-government backed
paper is mitigated by investing only in leadingafiicial institutions.

The Group’s sales policy follow the criteria foedit sales set by Management, which
seeks to mitigate any loss from customers’ delingye
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h) Derivatives

)

The Group may enter into derivatives contracts édge risks arising from exchange
rate fluctuations and interest. There were no suwtiracts on December 31, 2009. In
2010, the Group entered into futures contract®f@-day interbank deposits at notional
average one day interest rate for the period betilee trade date and the final day of
the contracted trading period, marked to marketrnagjdghe effective average one day
interest rate for the period, as calculated andighdxd daily by CETIP. The result of

these contracts was a loss of US$24 (R$40), saltledg 2010. As of December 31,

2010 there were no such contracts.

Fair value of financial instruments

The Group’s financial instruments are recordedataice sheet accounts at December
31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 at amounts sinaldng fair value at those dates.
These instruments are managed though operatinggga aimed to obtain liquidity,
profitability and security. The control policy casis of an ongoing monitoring of rates
agreed versus those in force in the market androaation as to whether its short-term
financial investments are being properly markednirket by the institutions dealing
with its funds.

The Group does not make speculative investmentierivatives or in any other risk
assets. The determination of estimated realizatednes of Company’s financial assets
and liabilities relies on information available ihe market and relevant assessment
methodologies. Nevertheless, considerable judgmes® required when interpreting
market data to derive the most adequate estimatdization value.

Criteria, assumptions and limitations used whenmaimg market values

Cash and cash equivalents

The market values of the bank current account lbakrare consistent with book
balances.

Short term investments

The book value of short-term financial investmeayproximates its fair value.

Trade and other receivables/payables

In the Group management’'s view, the book balancerafe and other accounts
receivable and payables approximates fair value.

Bank Overdrafts and Loans

Fair value of loans arrangements were calculatatieat present value determined by
future cash flows and at interest rates applicabli@struments of similar nature, terms
and risks or at market quotations of these seesiriti

Fair value of BNDES and Eximbank financing arrangats is similar to book balances
since there are no similar instruments, with corapla maturity dates and interest rates.

55



Wilson Sons Limited

In the loan arrangement with IFC, fair value wasaoted using the same spread as in
the most recent agreement plus Libor.
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26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the company and its subsdjasihich are related parties, have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosedhis note. Transactions between the
group and its associates, joint ventures, otheestnaents and other parties are disclosed

below.
Current
Liabilities Revenues Expenses
US$ uUss$ uss$
Joint ventures:
3. Allink Transportes Internacionais Ltda. (287) 1,308 3
4. Transamérica Ag. Maritima 1,635 - 114
5. Consoércio de Rebocadores Barra de Coqueiros (5) 266 26
6. Consorcio de Rebocadores Baifa de Sdo Marcos 722)1, 2,443 20
7. Wilson Sons Ultratug (8,915) 1,623 590
8. Wilson Sons Offshore 23,575 17,573 2,241
9. Magallanes Navegacéao Brasileira (6,630) 17,751 1,792
Other:
1. Gouvéa Vieira Advogados - - 94
2. CMMR Intermedia¢do Comercial Ltda. - - 338
At December 31, 2010 7,651 40,964 5,218
At December 31, 2009 (4,770 4,608 457
Current
liabilities Revenues Expenses
R$ R$ R$
Joint ventures:
3. Allink Transportes Internacionais Ltda. (478) 2,181 5
4. Transamérica Ag. Maritima 2,724 - 190
5. Consoércio de Rebocadores Barra de Coqueiros 9) 444 43
6. Consodrcio de Rebocadores Baia de Sdo Marcos 87002, 4,071 33
7. Wilson Sons Ultratug (14,854) 2,704 983
8. Wilson Sons Offshore 39,280 29,280 3,734
9. Magallanes Navegacéao Brasileira (11,047) 29,576 2,987
Other:
1. Gouvéa Vieira Advogados - - 157
2. CMMR Intermediacdo Comercial Ltda. - - 564
At December 31, 2010 12,746 68,256 8,696
At December 31, 2009 (8,306 8,023 _795

1. Dr. J.F. Gouvea Vieira is a managing partnghelaw firm Gouvea Vieira Advogados. Fees werel paiGouvea
Vieira Advogados for legal services.

2. Mr. C. M. Marote is a shareholder and DirectoilCOiIMR Intermediacdo Comercial Limitada, Fees were paid
CMMR Intermediagdo Comercial Limitada for consultaseyvices.

3.  Allink Transportes Internacionais Limitada i€¥b@wned by the Group and rents office space framGtoup.

4.  Trade and other payables with Transaméricar@ste- 1% per month; with no maturity).

5-6. The transactions with the joint ventures aigcldsed as a result of proportionate amounts tiotirated on
consolidation.

7.  Intercompany loan (Interest — 0.3% per monftlth wo maturity)
8-9. Trade payable (receivable) for Wilson Sdripyards in respect of vessel construction

The Company adopted the policy of netting the asaat liabilities of the group related
party transactions.
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Profit before tax

Less: Investment revenues

Less: Result on disposal of investment

Add: Finance costs

Operating profit from operations

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Provision for cash-settled share-based payment
Increase/decrease in provisions

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

(Increase) in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets
Investment income

Cash generated by operations

Income taxes paid
Interest paid

Net cash from operating activities

Non-cash transactions

During the current year, the Group entered into fillowing non-cash investing and

20

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FMT5

2010 2009 2010 2009
uss uss R$ R$

101,019 121,088 168,318 210,837
(13,940)  (34,343) P32 (59,798)
(20,407)  97) (  (34,002) (169)
11,814 _ 9,555 19,684 16,637
78,486 96,203 30,¥73 167,507
42,921  06%2, 71,515 55,832
(90) (372) (150) (647)
3,204 9,424 22,000 16,409
2,458 1,376 4,096 2,396
136,979 138,696 228,234 241,497
24 (11,285) 41 (19,649)
(32,098)(22,295)  (53,482)  (38,820)
16,982 14,84 28,295 25,851
9213,  (2,454) 6,533 (4,273)

- 14 - 24
125,808 117,523 6209, 204,630
(20,908)  (38,377)  (34,837)  (66,822)
(7,887 (9,23 (13.14) (16,089

97,013 __ 69,908 161,643 121,723

financing activities which are not reflected in t@nsolidated statement of cash flows:

» Equipment acquisition under finance leasing of U838 (R$3,213) (2009: US$8,928

(R$15,545);

* Tecon Rio Grande’s equipment financing of US$ 1@,R$ 24,493);

» Fixed Assets suplliers US$2,274 (R$3,788) (20091)887 (R$1,945));

» Capitalized interest US$1,683 (R$2,806) (2009:USKR3$1,271));

e Taxes settlement US$3,454 (R$5,755) (2009: US$4(B$8,001));

Supplemental notes related to Cash Flow Statement:

Effect of joint venture transaction in the casiwflstatement:

Cash and cash equivalents
Property, plant & equipment
Other non-current assets
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Bank overdrafts and loans
Others liabilities

Total

2010
US$ R$
5,040 8,398

(6,386)  (10,640)

49 82
(515) (858)

(2,639)  (4,397)

12,002 19,998

12,856 21,420

20,407 34,002
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28.

29.

30.

31.

REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The remuneration of the directors, who are the kepagement personnel of the Group, is
set out below in aggregate for each of the categori

2010 2009 2010 2009

US$ US$ R$ R$
Short-term employee benefits 11,04 6,866 18,410 13,687
Post-employment benefits and social charges 2, 1,537 4,486 3,065
Share-based payment provision 13,2( 9,424 22,001 16,409

26,945 17,827 44,897 33,161

INSURANCE COVERAGE

The main insurance coverage in December 31, 2GitQtie Group contracted:

Risks Subject Coverage Coverage
US$ R$

Managers and
directors Managers” Civil Responsibility 30,008 50,000
Maritime Hull Tugs 266,813 444,564
Maritime Hull Platform Supply Vessels 284,473 473,989
Maritime Hull CR - Protection and loss of inconshipowner¥ 6,000,000 9,997,200
Maritime Hull Tugs and boats 31,131 51,870

Port Operator Civil Responsibility (including ctel#t and
real estates), Terminals (including chattels aadl @states),

Port Operator CR logistics operations 100,000 166,620
Buildings, machines, furniture and fixtures,

Property (Multiline)  goods and raw materials 15,274 25,450

Total 6,727,699 11,209,693

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On January 26, 2011 the Group announced that lam@ima Terminais Ltda
(“Intermaritima”) has exercised a call option gethby the Company to buy 7.5% of the
ordinary shares of Tecon Salvador S.A at a pric&J8$6,723 (R$11,202). The right of
Intermaritima to exercise this option was subjedhe Company gaining the right to operate
exclusively in the area of Salvador’s Port refert@ds “Ponta Norte”.

Intermaritima is an important inland and port ltigs operator with activities in the major
ports of Bahia state - Salvador, Aratu and Ilhduss alliance will facilitate the continued

growth of Tecon Salvador as well as the explorattdnnew general and bulk cargo
opportunities in Bahia, the sixth largest Braziliaoonomy according to data from the
Brazilian Institute of Geography and Statistics.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENS

The consolidated financial statement were apprdyeithe board of directors and authorized
for issue on March 24, 2011.
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